_ho

HALTON Development Management Committee
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Monday, 3 July 2023 6.30 p.m.
Civic Suite, Town Hall, Runcorn

Q
5 Moy

Chief Executive

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Councillor Stan Hill (Chair)
Councillor Rosie Leck (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Laura Bevan

Councillor Chris Carlin

Councillor Sian Davidson

Councillor Chris Loftus
Councillor Ged Philbin
Councillor Carol Plumpton Walsh
Councillor Rob Polhill

Councillor Dave Thompson

Councillor Bill Woolfall

Please contact Ann Jones on 0151 511 8276 Ext. 16 8276 or
ann.jones@halton.gov.uk for further information.
The next meeting of the Committee is on Monday, 7 August 2023



ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Part |
Item No. Page No.
1. MINUTES 1-5
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or Other Disclosable Interest
which they have in any item of business on the agenda, no later
than when that item is reached or as soon as the interest
becomes apparent and, with Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, to
leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting on the item.

3. PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE
COMMITTEE

(A) 22/00318/FUL - Proposed development comprising 328 6-40
dwellings including a mix of 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 bedroom units,
affordable housing provision, creation of two new access
points from Lunt's Heath Road and associated landscaping,
open space, play space and parking provision on land North
of Lunt's Heath Road, Widnes.

(B) 22/00377/FUL - Proposed demolition of existing buildings 41 - 83
and the erection of residential development (Use Class C3)
with associated landscaping, access/egress, car parking,
drainage, and other necessary supporting infrastructure on
land at South Lane, Widnes.

(C) 22/00602/COU - Proposed change of use from Bar/Bed and | 84 - 97
Breakfast to a 17 bedroom house in multiple occupation,
including external alterations at Bridge View Sports Bar, 78
High Street, Runcorn, WA7 1JH.

(D) PLANS 98 - 144

4. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS 145

In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 1

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

At a meeting of the Development Management Committee on Monday, 5 June 2023 at
the Civic Suite, Town Hall, Runcorn

Present: Councillors S. Hill (Chair), Leck (Vice-Chair), Bevan, Carlin, Davidson,
C. Loftus, Philbin, C. Plumpton Walsh, Polhill, Thompson and Woolfall

Apologies for Absence: None
Absence declared on Council business: None

Officers present: A. Jones, T. Gibbs, A. Plant, J. Eaton, L. Wilson-Lagan and
A. Blackburn

Also in attendance: Councillors M. Lloyd Jones and P. Lloyd Jones and 4
members of the public

ITEMS DEALT WITH
UNDER DUTIES
EXERCISABLE BY THE COMMITTEE

Action
DEV1 MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 15 May 2023,
having been circulated, were taken as read and signed as a
correct record.

DEV2 PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE
COMMITTEE

The Committee considered the following applications
for planning permission and, in accordance with its powers
and duties, made the decisions described below.

DEV3 22/00041/COU - RETROSPECTIVE APPLICATION FOR
CHANGE OF USE OF FIELD TO DOG WALKING AND
DAY CARE FACILITY AND ERECTION OF FIELD
SHELTER AT WHITEHOUSE FARM, BARKERS HOLLOW
ROAD, PRESTON BROOK, WA4 4LW

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.

The Committee was informed that in order to address



Page 2

concerns over access arrangements, the Applicant had
made changes to the proposed site layout plan; these were
outlined. The Applicant had also undertaken an
independent stage one and two Road Safety Audit based on
the amended scheme. The Highway’s Officer now
considered that the proposal was acceptable subject to the
attachment of conditions securing the off-site highway
improvements and a travel plan detailing drop off, pick up,
parking and manoeuvring protocols and visibility splays.

It was noted the Environmental Health Officer raised
no objection to the proposal as noise nuisance was not likely
to cause a significant increase in ambient noise levels for
either day or night time conditions.

Since the publication of the agenda, it was reported
that a photograph showing 15 dogs on the site had been
submitted to the Council by an interested party. Members
were advised this number corresponded with the current
restriction imposed by Environmental Health in the
Applicant’s licence, under the Animal Welfare Act 2006 for
the boarding of dogs as set out in the report.

Mrs Reid, who owned and lived in the neighbouring
property, addressed the Committee. She opposed the
application stating that it hindered her peaceful enjoyment of
her property, where she has lived for over 30 years. She
stated that she was not aware of the publication of the
agenda until last Friday. She argued the following, inter alia:

e There were 15 dogs not 10 as stated in the
submission;

¢ Only one handler was in charge of 15 dogs;

e News reports indicated that there had been a 37%
increase in dog attacks;

e There was noise disturbance from barking dogs in the
field and music being played to calm them;

e Loss of privacy — dogs were constantly being walked
and there is excrement left behind;

e The powerful floodlights on the site also lit her garden
and cottage;

e A tree at Keepers Cottage was cut down without
permission;

e She can no longer access her septic tank due to the
erection of a new fence; and

e Paragraph 4.3 referred to — she was the complainant
referred to but it was not just one complaint she had
made.

She stated that she has endured this for the past two




Page 3

years before the application was submitted to the Council.
She urged the Committee to refuse the application.

Councillor Martha Lloyd Jones, Local Ward Councillor
for Preston Brook, addressed the Committee objecting to the
proposal, in support of Mrs Reid.

She reiterated Mrs Reid’s objections; stating that she
had lost the peaceful enjoyment of her property between the
hours of 8am and 6pm due to the noise disturbance from
barking dogs. She also commented:

e That for the Applicant to say she has a ‘strict anti-bark
policy’ was ludicrous — how do you stop dogs from
barking;

e The lighting system on the site also lit up Mrs Reid’s
property, causing light disturbance;

e Mrs Reid was the only neighbouring property owner
to the facility;

e The Applicants were allegedly planning to extend the
business to include boarding kennels in the future;

e There should be a condition restricting the use
beyond 6pm and the conditions should be monitored;
and

e This was a retrospective application — the business
had operated for two years without permission.

Councillor Lloyd Jones urged the Committee to reject
the application on the basis of the total loss of enjoyment for
Mrs Reid of her property during daytime hours.

Following a Member’s query regarding consideration
of Article 8 of the Human Rights Act, the Committee heard a
quote from the Inspectorate regarding the ‘Right to Privacy’
in its context with planning laws. It was confirmed that
Article 8 was not sufficient grounds to warrant the refusal of
the application.

Further to Members’ questions, clarity on the
requirement for evidence of noise nuisance was provided.
The objector cited noise nuisance but there was no evidence
to support this from the Environmental Health Officer, so an
abatement Notice could not be served. Environmental
Health concluded therefore, that an objection to the proposal
on the grounds of noise disturbance could not be sustained,
as outlined in the report.

After considering the application before them and
comments provided by the speakers, the Committee agreed
to approve the application by majority.




DEV4

Page 4

RESOLVED: That the application be approved
subject to the following conditions:

Soft landscaping scheme;

Implementation of offsite highway improvements;
Travel plan;

Visibility splays; and

Implementation of boundary treatments.

a0~

MISCELLANEOQUS ITEMS

It was noted that the following appeals had been
received or were in progress:

22/00019/PLD

Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for a
proposed use of development for the installation of a solar
farm (ground mounted solar photovoltaic panels) at
Liverpool John Lennon Airport, land bounded by Dungeon
Lane, Hale Road and Baileys Lane to the East of Liverpool
John Lennon Airport, Speke, Liverpool, L24 1YD.

22/00103/FUL

Proposed construction of front dormer and rear dormer to
newly formed first floor at 265 Hale Road, Hale, Liverpool,
L24 5RF.

22/00285/ADV & 22/00284/FUL

The retrospective application for planning consent for the
installation of a car park management system on existing car
park comprising 4 no. pole mounted automatic number plate
recognition (ANPR) cameras and 6 no. park and display
machines at Car Park at Green Oaks Shopping Centre,
Widnes, WA8 6UA.

21/00016/0UT

Outline application, with all matters other than access
reserved for the erection of two semi-detached dwellings
and four detached dwellings on the existing Church field and
the retention of the existing scout hut at Hough Green Scout
and Guide Group Hall and Church Field Hall Avenue,
Widnes.

It was noted that the following appeals had been
determined as follows:

21/00629/COU

Proposed change of use from dwelling (Use Class C3) to
dental practice (Use Class E (e)) with onsite parking
provision for 8 vehicles at 34 Cronton Lane, Widnes, WAS8




Page 5

5AJ — Allowed.

22/00292/FUL

Proposed erection of a secure replacement 2.4m high brick
perimeter wall to vehicle impound yard at DVLA Pound,
Waterloo Road / Barn Street, Widnes, WA8 0QF — Allowed.

Meeting ended at 7.00 p.m.



Page 6 Agenda Item 3a

APPLICATION NO:

22/00318/FUL

LOCATION:

Land North of Lunt’'s Heath Road, Widnes

PROPOSAL:

Proposed development comprising 328 dwellings
including a mix of 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5-bedroom units,
affordable housing provision, creation of two new
access points from Lunt’s Heath Road and
associated landscaping, open space, play space
and parking provision.

WARD:

Farnworth

PARISH:

None

AGENT(S)/APPLICANT(S):

NJL Consulting/Miller Homes

DEVELOPMENT PLAN
ALLOCATION:

National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

Delivery and Allocations Local Plan (‘DALP’) (March
2022).

Allocated Residential Site Ref: W49

Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste
Local Plan (2013)

DEPARTURE:

No

REPRESENTATIONS:

Public Representations received:
71 Representations Registered for the original
submission.

17 Representations Registered for the revised
scheme.

KEY ISSUES:

Principle of development, affordable housing,
connectivity, layout, highway impact, residential
privacy and overlooking, ecology, access, drainage,
compensatory measures for former Green Belt site.

RECOMMENDATION:

That authority be delegated to the Operational
Director — Planning, Policy and Transportation, to
determine the application in consultation with the
Chair or Vice Chair of the Committee, following the
satisfactory resolution of the outstanding issues
relating to minor highway amendments and updated
comments from the LLFA and MEAS.




SITE MAP:

1. APPLICATION SITE

1.1The Site

The application site is allocated for residential development as a strategic
housing allocation (allocation W49) on the Halton Delivery and Allocations
Local Plan Policies Map and measures approximately 16 hectares of
undeveloped, predominantly arable farmland.

The site is bound by Lunt’s Heath Road to the south and the junction of
Watkinson Way (A557), with the dual carriageway to the north of the site
providing access to the M62 motorway network. To the western boundary is a
Scheduled Ancient Monument, The Cranshaw Hall Moated Site, with the farm
house and barns associated with Cranshaw Farm, which are in residential
use.

The site is largely located within Flood Zone 1 and is at the lowest risk of
flooding. (This is with the exception of Bowers Brook which bisects the site).

In the wider context, the application site is located at the northern edge of
Widnes, beyond that of the existing residential development on Lunt’s Heath
Road.

1.2Planning History

The site is an undeveloped greenfield site allocation and has not been subject
to any planning applications previously and therefore has no relevant planning
history.




Page 8

2. THE APPLICATION

2.1The Proposal

The original planning application was submitted with the following description
of development:

Proposed development comprising 317 dwellings including a mix of 1,
2, 3 and 4-bedroom units, affordable housing provision, creation of two
new access points from Lunts Heath Road and associated
landscaping, open space, play space and parking provision.

The proposed development has since been revised, and description of
development now reads:

Proposed development comprising 328 dwellings including a mix of 1,
2, 3, 4 and 5-bedroom units, affordable housing provision, creation of
two new access points from Lunt’s Heath Road and associated
landscaping, open space, play space and parking provision.

2.2 Documentation

The planning application is supported by the following documents:

e Associated plans (all viewable through the Council’s Website)
e Planning Statement

e Design and Access Statement

e Transport Assessment including Travel Plan

e Highways Technical Note

e Tree Survey

e Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement

e Landscape & Visual Impact Assessment

e Ecology Assessment

e Preliminary Assessment of Biodiversity Net Gain & DEFRA Metric
e Archaeological — WSI Statement

e Flood Risk Assessment

e Drainage Strategy

e Ground Investigation Report

e E.I.A Screening Opinion Report

¢ Air Quality Report and Statement

¢ Noise Impact Assessment

e Energy Statement

e Health Impact Assessment

e Statement of Community Involvement



Page 9

3. POLICY CONTEXT

Members are reminded that planning law requires for development proposals
to be determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

3.1 Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan (DALP) (2022)

The following policies contained within the Halton Delivery and Allocations
Local Plan are of relevance:

CS(R)1 Halton’s Spatial Strategy

CS(R)3 Housing Supply and Locational Priorities (including Trajectory)
CS(R)6 Green Belt

CS(R)7 Infrastructure Provision

CS(R)12 Housing Mix and Specialist Housing

CS(R)13 Affordable Homes

CS(R)15 Sustainable Transport

CS(R)18 High Quality Design

CS(R)19 Sustainable Development and Climate Change
CS(R)20 Natural and Historic Environment

CS(R)21 Green Infrastructure

CS(R)22 Health and Well-being

CS23 Managing Pollution and Risk

CS24 Waste

RD1 Residential Development Allocations

RD4 Greenspace Provision for Residential Development
C1 Transport Network and Accessibility

C2 Parking Standards

HC10 Education

HE1 Natural Environment and Nature Conservation
HEZ2 Heritage Assets and the Historic Environment

HE4 Greenspace and Green Infrastructure

HES5 Trees and Landscaping

HE7 Pollution and Nuisance

HES8 Land Contamination

HE9 Water Management and Flood Risk

GR1 Design of Development

GR2 Amenity

GR3 Boundary Fences and Walls

GR5 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy

3.2 Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local Plan (2013)

The following policies, contained within the Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste
Local Plan are of relevance:

¢ WMS8 Waste Prevention and Resource Management;



Page 10

e WM9 Sustainable Waste Management Design and Layout for
New Development.

3.3 Supplementary Planning Documents

e Design of Residential Development (2012)
e Designing for Community Safety (2005)
e Draft Open Spaces Supplementary Planning Document (2007)

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Below are material considerations relevant to the determination of this
planning application.

3.4 National Planning Policy Framework

The last iteration of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was
published in July 2021 and sets out the Government’s planning policies for
England and how these should be applied.

Paragraph 47 states that planning law requires planning applications to be
determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. Decisions on applications should be made
as quickly as possible and within statutory timescales unless a longer period
has been agreed by the applicant in writing.

Paragraph 81 states that planning policies and decisions should help create
the conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt. Significant
weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth and
productivity, taking into account both local business needs and wider
opportunities for development.

3.5National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

Together, the National Planning Policy Framework and National Planning
Practice Guidance set out what the Government expects of local authorities.
The overall aim is to ensure the planning system allows land to be used for
new homes and jobs, while protecting valuable natural and historic
environments.

3.6 Other Considerations

The application has been considered having regard to Article 1 of the First
Protocol of the Human Rights Act 1998, which sets out a person’s rights to the
peaceful enjoyment of property and Article 8 of the Convention of the same
Act which sets out his/her rights in respect for private and family life and for
the home. Officers consider that the proposed development would not be
contrary to the provisions of the above Articles in respect of the human rights
of surrounding residents/occupiers.




Page 11

3.7 Equality Duty

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 created the public sector equality duty.
Section 149 states:-

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to
the need to:

a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any
other conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;

b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

Officers have taken this into account and given due regard to this statutory
duty, and the matters specified in Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 in the
determination of this application.

There are no known equality implications arising directly from this development
that justify the refusal of planning permission.

. CONSULTATIONS

The application has been advertised via the following methods: A press
advert in the Widnes and Runcorn Weekly News, site notices posted near to
the site and on the Council’s website. Surrounding residents were also
notified by letter on 23.06.22.

Following the receipt of amended plans and information, neighbour
consultation letters were sent to surrounding residents and contributors on
20.01.2023.

Following the Applicant’s modification of the scheme a follow up 21-day
consultation exercise was issued to neighbours, contributors and statutory
consultees on 11.05.23.

The following organisations have been consulted and, where relevant, any
comments received have been summarised below in the assessment section
of the report:

¢ United Utilities
No objection, suggested conditions

e Environment Agency
No objection — suggested conditions

e Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service
No objection, see section below



Page 12

e Natural England
No objection
e Scottish Power
No comments to make on application
¢ National Highways
No objection — see sections below
e Cheshire Police
No objection — see section below
e National Grid
No comments received

Council Services

e HBC Highways and Transport
See section below

e HBC Environmental Protection
No objection

e HBC Contaminated Land
No Objection

e HBC Open Spaces
No objection

e Lead Local Flood Authority
See section below

e HBC Planning Policy
No objection

e HBC Waste Management Services
No comments received

e HBC Public Health
No objection

e HBC Farnworth Ward Councillors
No comments received

e Cheshire Archaeology
No objection

5. REPRESENTATIONS

A number of representations have been received as a result of the publicity
undertaken for the application, the details of which are summarised below.

GROUNDS OF OBJECTION

e Loss of Green Belt land

¢ No mitigation for loss of Green Belt land

e Loss of green space

¢ Brownfield sites should be used first for development
e Industry land should be used first

e Impact on ecology, wildlife and habitats



Page 13

Impact on climate change

Increased carbon footprint

Increased noise and air pollution

Loss of trees

Too many affordable homes being provided in the borough

Not enough affordable housing

Affordable homes are not affordable

No need for more housing

Too many houses proposed

Housing targets have been surpassed

Not a sustainable housing stock

Will Widnes people even live here, Widnes has enough houses, not
bought by Widnes people.

Are there enough employment opportunities in the area or will people
need to travel for work

Unacceptable impact on local amenities — school places, GP and
Dentist appointments etc.

Unacceptable impact on the road network

Increased traffic and congestion

Cumulative highway impact of multiple housing schemes in the area
and strain on infrastructure

No bus facilities directly into Widnes or train station

Area is not pedestrian or bike friendly

Impact on highway safety and road traffic accidents

Access in and out of Finsbury Park is already difficult

Need updated road markings

Development will impact street parking on Lunt’'s Heath Road, need to
ensure each new home has sufficient parking spaces

Impact on junctions at Derby Road/Peel House Lane

Altering the road layout will ruin the aesthetic of the area

The site contains a water course — flood risk concerns

Destructive site investigations have already taken place
Consultation feedback has been ignored and an increase in number of
houses has been proposed

Request for a reduction in council tax

The Council are profiting from new houses at the expense of Widnes
Green Belt

Impact on health, mental and physical wellbeing

Development will lead to an increase in anti-social behaviour, too
many youths and not enough policing

Need a new park for children

Impact on fire safety, reducing access for emergency services to the
rear of existing homes

Bland, poor design housing not in keeping with the surrounding estate



Page 14

e Sprawling housing estates will impact the character of the area and a
loss of the rural feeling

e No 5 bedroom houses are proposed

e Overlooking into existing gardens and windows — impact on human
rights article

e Loss of light

e Decrease in property values

GROUNDS OF SUPPORT

e More homes in this area are needed for first time buyers

e Fully support new homes in this desirable area

e House prices are so high and it’s difficult to get on to the housing
ladder — developers offer a much easier route to buying a home and
are involved in a number of schemes for buyers

e Lovely estate with high quality houses for the area

e Great opportunity and reinvestment into the local area

e Plans look fabulous and very green and open

e Support in principle

e The development will bring business and investment into the area

Following the Applicant’'s modification of the scheme a follow up 21-day
consultation exercise was issued to neighbours and contributors. A number of
representations have been received as a result of the re-consultation
exercise, the details of which are summarised below.

e Loss of Green Belt land

¢ No mitigation for loss of Green Belt land

e Loss of green space

e Shortfalls in open space provisions

e Brownfield sites should be used first for development

e Impact on ecology, wildlife and habitats

e Impact on climate change

¢ Increased noise and air pollution will affect home workers

e Loss of trees

¢ Housing targets have been surpassed

¢ Unacceptable impact on local amenities — school places, GP and
Dentist appointments etc.

e Unacceptable impact on the road network

e Increased traffic and congestion

e Cumulative highway impact of multiple housing schemes in the area
and strain on infrastructure

e Access in and out of Finsbury Park is already difficult

e Impact on health, mental and physical wellbeing



Page 15

e Development will lead to an increase in anti-social behaviour, too
many youths and not enough policing

e Overlooking into existing gardens and windows — impact on human
rights article

e Loss of light and outlook

e Impact on character of the area — especially three storey dwellings

e Development is not in the interest of the existing residents

6. ASSESSMENT

6.1 Principle of Development

The application site is designated as a Strategic Housing Location and
Residential Allocation on the Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan
Policies Map.

Policy CS(R)3 of the Delivery and Allocations Local Plan states that during the
plan period (up to the year 2037) provision will be made for the development
of at least 8,050 (net) additional dwellings at an average of 350 dwellings
(net) each year. The total of 8,050 new homes will be delivered from a variety
of sources, one being via strategic residential locations as identified on the
Policies Map. The application site forms part of the Strategic Residential
Location ‘SRL7: North East Widnes’. The principle of residential development
in this location is therefore policy compliant and acceptable in accordance
with Policy CS(R)3 of the Delivery and Allocations Local Plan.

Policy RD1 of the Delivery and Allocations Local Plan lists the Residential
Allocations and the Strategic Housing Locations, and states that these
allocations will assist in the delivery of the above requirements set out in
Policy CS(R)3. The application site sits within the area referenced as W49 in
the list of allocations.

Where a site does not have a current planning permission, an indicative
notional capacity has been provided within Policy RD1 based on assessment
of a suitable density that takes into consideration the location and context of
the site and any other uses that are proposed on the site. Policy CS(R)3
states that to ensure the efficient use of land, a minimum density on individual
sites of 30 dwellings per hectare will be sought. In more accessible locations
such as those close to town, district or local centres or transport interchanges
the presumption will be for developments achieving densities of 40 dwellings
per hectare or greater.

The site allocated as W49 covers approximately 18.13 Ha and has a notional
capacity of 381 units/dwellings as identified in Policy RD1 of the DALP. The
application site covers approximately 16Ha of W49 (88% of the strategic
allocation) and the proposed development consists of 328 units/dwellings
which is within the parameters set out in the allocation (notional capacity of
335 dwellings) and therefore accords with Policy RD1 of the Delivery and
Allocations Local Plan.



Page 16

Based on the above, it is considered that the principle of residential
development in this location is acceptable in line with Policies CS(R)3 and
RD1 of the Delivery and Allocations Local Plan, subject to acceptable details
assessed against policies contained within the development plan and material
planning considerations.

6.2 Released Green Belt Land

Halton’s Spatial Strategy, set out in Policy CS(R)1 of the Delivery and
Allocations Local Plan, is focused around delivering development through a
balanced mix of prioritised urban regeneration, supported by appropriate
levels of greenfield expansion. For North Widnes, this spatial strategy will be
delivered by greenfield expansion and further extension to the urban area.
The policy justification explains that despite the priority to renew and improve
the Borough’s urban landscape through new development, it is apparent that
not all future development can be delivered on brownfield land. Much of the
remaining previously developed land is highly constrained through
contamination or other factors which affect development viability, reducing the
amount of brownfield land which can realistically be brought back into
beneficial use.

Policy justification for CS(R)6 of the Delivery and Allocations Local Plan states
that:

The Green Belt in Halton has been very successful in containing the
expansion of the urban areas and encouraging the re-use of brownfield
land. However, the remaining supply of brownfield land is no longer
sufficient to meet the development needs for Halton over the Plan period.
This led the Examination into the Core Strategy Local Plan (in 2011) to
conclude that there was insufficient identified developable land within
Widnes to meet future development requirements and as such identified
the need to undertake a review of Halton’s Green Bel.

Greenbelt Exceptional Circumstances Paper ELO01 Dec 2017 summarises
the steps that the council had undertaken to review all available land options
before deciding that there are exceptional circumstances to release green belt
land to meet housing needs. It concludes that the land available through all
these options is not sufficient to meet the Borough'’s housing requirements
and so there are exceptional circumstances to release land from the green
belt to meet housing needs.

The allocation of site W49 (the application site) is the result of extensive
assessment and the consideration of alternative options by the Council in
accordance with the NPPF (paragraph 137), to reach the conclusion that
there is a demonstrable need to release Green Belt land and that the land at
Lunt’'s Heath Road is a suitable location to release land for residential
development.

Policy CS(R)6 of the Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan states that
development proposals for the sites removed from the Green Belt and



Page 17

allocated or safeguarded in this plan should include compensatory
improvements to the environmental quality and accessibility of remaining
Green Belt land to offset the impact of the removal of the land from the Green
Belt.

Under point 7.71 of this policy, it is set out that compensatory improvements
could include new or enhanced green infrastructure, woodland planting,
landscape and visual enhancements, improvements to biodiversity, new or
enhanced walking or cycling routes and improved access to new, enhanced
or existing recreational and playing field provision.

The compensatory improvements as detailed above have been incorporated
into the proposed scheme as follows:

e Bower’s Brook (an important natural feature) is made to be a key feature
within the site. The watercourse is set in a wide corridor and flanked by
formal and incidental open space. The proposal allows direct access to
this area and includes substantial new planting and landscaping to
strengthen it as a landscape feature.

e Designated play spaces are located within the greenspace with
connecting footpaths meaning those living both within and outside of the
application boundary can easily access the space.

e Existing ponds are retained within the greenspace to promote biodiversity
and habitat creation.

e A proposed new SUDs basin will provide a functional use whilst also
creating opportunities for biodiversity to thrive in this location.

¢ A significant buffer along the north-western edges to provide a landscaped
edge with houses backing onto these areas having longer gardens to allow
sufficient offset. The planting area will be outside of their ownership and so
will be retained long term and maintained accordingly.

e Clearly defined walking routes are included to encourage pedestrian
movement through “safe and pleasant routes” and provide direct access to
green space.

In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development
demonstrates compliance with Policy CS(R)6 of the Halton Delivery and
Allocations Local Plan. The proposed development encourages accessibility
where possible and promotes a high environmental quality and thus provides
sufficient compensatory improvements throughout the scheme to
offset/mitigate the impact of the removal of the land from the Green Belt.

6.3 Housing mix

Policy CS(R)3 of the Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan states that on
sites of 10 or more dwellings, the mix of new property types delivered should
contribute to addressing identified needs as quantified in the most up to date



Page 18

Strategic Housing Market Assessment, unless precluded by site specific
constraints, economic viability or prevailing neighbourhood characteristics.
Policy CS(R)12 echoes this housing mix requirement.

The Mid-Mersey Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) 2016 set out
the demographic need for different sizes of homes, identifying that the
majority of market homes need to provide two or three bedrooms, with more
than 50% of homes being three bedroomed. However, it is recognised that a
range of factors including affordability pressures and market signals will
continue to play an important role in the market demand for different sizes of
homes.

The SHMA assessment also identified that, relative to England and Wales,
there is a below average representation of homes with four or more bedrooms
within the Housing Market Area (HMA). Considering this shortfall, there is a
need for 4+ bedroom houses within Halton to serve identified forecasted
needs.

The housing type profile in Halton currently differs from the national pattern
with higher proportions of medium/large terraced houses and bungalows than
the average for England and Wales. Consequently there is an under provision
of other dwelling types, namely detached homes and also to a certain extent,
flatted homes.

The Liverpool City Region SHELMA (Strategic Housing and Employment
Land Market Assessment) shows an above average representation of
detached and semi-detached sales however does not breakdown for bedroom
requirements. In Halton this is due to a particularly high proportion of new
build sales that upwardly skew the figures for detached and semi-detached
sales.

Alongside delivering the right quantity of new homes, it is equally important
that the right type of housing is provided to meet the needs of Halton’s
existing population, address imbalances in the existing housing stock and
ensure the homes provided can adapt to changing demographics.

The proposed development comprises 328 new dwellings with the following
breakdowns:

1 bed units — 12
2 bed units — 39
3 bed units — 165
4 bed units — 101
5 bed units — 11

For clarity, the table below sets out the proposed unit mix against the
requirement set out in the Local Plan.



Page 19

Unit size Proposed Halton Proposed Halton
quantum and % Requirement | quantum and % of | requirement
of market units affordable units

1 bedroom | 0 6.5% 12 (18%) 45.4%

2 bedroom | 21 (8%) 30.4% 18 (27%) 27.2%

3 bedroom | 129 (49%) 52.7% 36 (55%) 24.8%

4 bedroom | 101 (39%) 10.5% 0 2.6%

5 bedroom | 11 (4%) 0

Total 262 100% 66 (20%) 100%

The proposed development would deliver an under provision of some of the
specific percentages indicated in the table above containing data from 2016,
and an over provision in some of the other percentages.

Policy CS(R)12 of the Delivery and Allocations Local Plan states “the mix of
new property types delivered are encouraged to contribute to addressing
identified needs as quantified in the most up to date SHMA”. The purpose of
this policy is to guide future housing mix within the borough and not intended
to be imposed rigidly to fit the identified need.

The proposed development would deliver 50.3% as 3-bedroom houses which
represents a significant contribution to the above mentioned need, identified
within the SHMA. The proposed provision of larger market homes is also
considered to be an acceptable distribution of the proposed housing mix.

Relative to England and Wales, there is a below average representation of
homes with four or more bedrooms within the Housing Market Assessment.
Considering this shortfall, there is a need for larger 4+ bedroom houses within
Halton to serve identified forecasted needs. The proposed development would
deliver 34% as 4+bedroom market homes and therefore would significantly
address this shortfall.

There is demand for 2 and 3 bedroom family homes within the Housing
Market Assessment. The market housing provision of the proposed
development comprises 8% 2-bedroom and 49% 3-bedroom units and the
affordable housing comprises 55% 3-bedroom units. Given the deficit of 4-
bedroom homes in the borough, the proposed provision of larger market
homes is considered an acceptable distribution of the proposed housing mix
and, on balance, makes up for the shortfall of 3-bedroom dwellings against
the policy requirement.

It is considered that the proposed housing mix put forward as part of the
application is appropriate and provide houses which will meet some of the
identified needs within Halton.

Whilst the mix of property types is not neatly aligned to the 2016 SHMA, the
policy requirement encourages proposals to contribute to addressing
identified needs and is more advisory than a prescriptive requirement. Given
the contrast of the housing mix proposed when compared to the 2016 SHMA,



Page 20

there is considered to be a non-compliance with Policies CS(R)3 and
CS(R)12, however based on the justification provided by the applicant and the
assessment set out, there are not sufficient grounds to warrant the refusal of
the application on the basis of housing mix.

6.4 Affordable Housing

Policy CS(R)13 of the Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan states that
all residential schemes including 10 or more dwellings (net gain), or 0.5ha or
more in size, with the exception of brownfield sites are to provide affordable

housing at the following rates:

a. Strategic Housing Sites: Those identified on the Policies Map as
Strategic Housing Locations, are required to deliver a 20%
affordable housing requirement.

The application site is designated as a Strategic Housing Location on the
Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan Policies Map, and as such 20% of
the proposed units should delivered as affordable housing.

Paragraph 2 of CS(R)13 sets out the Councils ambition for affordable housing
delivery, at 74% social rent and 26% intermediary. Notwithstanding this detail,
the Government published updated national guidance on the delivery of First
Homes since the DALP examination in public. The Applicant has offered a
proportion of first homes as part of the proposed affordable housing delivery.

First Homes are a specific kind of discounted market sale housing and should
be considered to meet the definition of ‘affordable housing’ for planning
purposes. First Homes are the government’s preferred discounted market
tenure and should account for at least 25% of all affordable housing units
delivered by developers through planning obligations. First homes are
required to fulfil the following nationally set criteria:

e Must be discounted by a minimum of 30% against the market value
e Sold to persons meeting the first homes eligibility criteria

e On their first sale will have a restriction registered on the Land Registry
title to ensure that other restrictions are passed on at each subsequent title
transfer

e A market price cap of £250,000 is applied

e Purchasers of a First Home should have a combined household income
not exceeding £80,000 in the tax year immediately preceding the year of
purchase

e A purchaser of a First Home should have a mortgage or home purchase
plan to fund a minimum of 50% of the discounted purchase price

The proposed development would deliver 66 affordable homes units, which
equates to 20% of the overall scheme. The table below shows the breakdown
of the affordable homes provision.



Page 21

Housetype No. of units
1 bed 12
2 beds 18
3 beds 36
4 beds 0

The affordable housing will be delivered in the following terms:

First Homes 32 units
Affordable Rented 21 units
Shared Ownership 13 units
Total 66

Concerning affordable housing, the Applicant has proposed a mix of property
types and delivery mechanisms that adequately addresses the affordable
housing need as part of a wider strategic housing site delivery.

First Homes account for at least 25% of all affordable homes in accordance
with national policy with the applicant intending to provide 48% of the
affordable homes for the Government’s preferred discounted market tenure.
The remaining affordable homes would be split between affordable rented
(32%) and shared ownership (20%).

There is a policy requirement for the affordable housing to be fully integrated
into the development site so as to avoid the over concentration of affordable
homes in any particular location and in order to achieve a seamless design. It
is considered that the proposed development achieves this requirement, given
the proposed locations of the affordable homes within the development.

Affordable housing would be secured by means of suitably worded clauses
within an accompanying S106 agreement. First homes eligibility criteria would
also form part of the S106 wording with a requirement for criteria to be
entered into the title deeds to ensure market discount is retained in perpetuity.

It has been demonstrated that the proposed development would deliver the
20% affordable housing requirement which meets the broad requirements of
planning policy CS(R)13 of the Halton DALP. It is not considered that the
percentage split in the type of affordable housing units would warrant the
refusal of the application given that over 20% can be delivered.

6.5Residential Site Layout and Residential Amenity

The proposed residential layout generally follows good urban design
principles and where possible avoids exposed rear boundaries. The proposed
layout is considered to provide active frontages which is assisted through the
use of dual aspect properties on corner plots.

The application is accompanied by existing and proposed site levels which
demonstrate that the layout generally provides separation in accordance with



Page 22

the privacy distances for residential development set out in the Design of
Residential Development Supplementary Planning Document. There are
some minor shortfalls in separation within the scheme, however they are not
considered to be to the significant detriment of residential amenity which
would warrant the refusal of the application on this basis.

A number of objections have been received from existing properties adjacent
to the application site with regards to interfacing distances. The proposed
development is compliant with the separation distances set out within the
Design of New Residential Development Supplementary Planning Document
which sets out the following interfacing distance standards:

e Where a principal window directly faces a principal window of another
neighbouring property, a minimum distance of 21 metres must be
maintained.

e Where principal windows directly face a blank elevation, a minimum
distance of 13 metres must be maintained.

21m would be retained between the proposed new dwellings and existing
properties on Lunt’'s Heath Road. 15.5m would be retained between the
proposed dwellings and no.10 Church View Close and 22m would be
maintained between No.5 Church View Close. It has been highlighted that a
4m extension to the rear of no.5 Church View Road has not been shown on
the plans, however this is outside of the red line application site and in
addition to this, the proposed interfacing distances are still policy compliant
when taking into consideration the existing extension. It is noted that the
properties on Church View Close will face blank gable elevations of the
proposed new units, as such, 13m separation is required and achieved and in
addition to this there will be no direct overlooking into the gardens of the
properties on Church View Close.

With regard to private outdoor space, the Design of Residential Development
Supplementary Planning Document states that in calculating the required size
of usable private outdoor space for houses the following minimum standards
should be used as a guide:

e Houses having 1-2 bedrooms shall have a minimum private outdoor
space of 50sqgm per unit;

e Houses having 3 bedrooms shall have a minimum private outdoor
space of 70sgm per unit;

e Houses having 4 or more bedrooms shall have a minimum private
outdoor space of 90sgm per unit.

The scheme has been designed so that it generally accords with this standard
and would ensure that each property has a usable private outdoor space
however a small number of plots (10% of the scheme) fall short of this
standard. It is not considered that this small percentage will be significant to
the detriment of residential amenity or the quality of the overall scheme, which



Page 23

would warrant the refusal of the application. Just because the gardens would
be modest, it does not follow that unacceptable harm would necessarily be
caused to future occupiers. The gardens would provide sufficient space for
sitting out, hanging laundry and for children to play. The proposed ratio of
garden to space per plot would appear proportionate.

The scheme comprises a range of property types including mews, semi-
detached and detached houses. The scheme provides variety in parking
solutions for properties with some located to the sides of properties and some
frontage parking. It should be noted that the proposal makes appropriate
parking provision for each property to meet the Council’s standards.
Sufficient space for soft landscaping to the front of properties which improves
the overall appearance of the scheme is provided. Appropriate boundary
treatments are proposed which are reflective of the positioning in terms of
appearance, privacy and durability.

With regard to the amenity of the proposed development, it is considered that
the proposals would provide for an appropriate form of development that
would not impact unduly on existing residents and that sufficient regard has
been had for the amenity of future occupiers.

On this basis, the proposed layout and resultant residential amenity is
considered to be acceptable and compliant with policies CS(R)18, C2, GR1,
GR2 and GR3 of the Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan.

6.6 Appearance

The elevations show that the proposed dwellings would be of an appropriate
appearance with variety in materials across the proposed development to add
interest to the overall external appearance of the scheme. The development
comprises a visually attractive layout with good quality design of the
Applicant’s line of housing that is consistent with the appearance of other
Miller Homes schemes. Whilst this is undoubtedly a significant change from
the undeveloped appearance on site at present, the proposed development is
consistent with that envisaged by the DALP land allocation. The final
appearance will result in a well-designed expansion to the northerly boundary
of the Widnes town suburb.

The application is accompanied by material layouts which specify external
facing materials which are considered acceptable and can be secured by
condition if the development were to be considered acceptable.

Based on the above, the proposal is considered acceptable in respect of
external appearance in compliance with Policies CS(R)18 and GR1 of the
Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan.

6.7 Open Space, Green Space and Green Infrastructure

Policy CS(R)21 of the Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan highlights
that Halton’s green infrastructure network will be protected, enhanced and



Page 24

expanded, where appropriate , and sets out how the delivery and
maintenance of green infrastructure will be achieved. The policy states this
will be achieved by ensuring that new development maximises opportunities
to make provision for high quality and multifunctional green infrastructure
taking account of deficiencies and the standards for green space provision.

Policies RD4, HE4 and HE5 of the Halton DALP set out the Council’s
expectations for the provision of open space and green infrastructure in new
developments. Policy RD4 underlines the importance at para 9.18 of the
DALP where it states:

The provision of greenspace underpins people’s quality of life. The
Council views such provision as being important to individual health
and wellbeing, and to the promotion of sustainable communities.

Paragraph 9.23 of the DALP goes on to say:

The provision of attractive and functional open space has an important
role to play in ensuring a satisfactory housing estate design. It is vital
that it should be considered as an integral element of the overall
residential layout. The type, location and amount of areas of open
space must be one.

It is proposed that a central green area will be retained around Bowers Brook,
which bisects the site, to provide publicly accessible open space. Within this
area, children’s play spaces are proposed. These areas will be joined by a
pedestrian footpath to ensure permeability of the site and open space. A
mixture of formal and informal natural play spaces are also proposed to
complement the existing features.

Policy RD4 ‘Greenspace provision for residential development’, states; all
residential development of 10 or more dwellings that create or exacerbate a
projected quantitative shortfall of greenspace or are not served by existing
accessible greenspace will be expected to make appropriate provision for the
needs arising from the development, having regard to the standards detailed
in table RD4.1 The Halton Open Space Study 2020 (OSS) forms the evidence
base for this policy.

Policy RD4 seeks to ensure that new housing development does not create of
exacerbate shortages of five different types of open space. Demand arising
from new development is assessed by calculating potential population on site
and applying a quantitative standard per person (m2/person) and considering
the quantity and proximity of existing supply within the area.

The application is providing 29,523 SgM of natural & semi-natural space, and
3,004 SgM for children and young people including one local area for play
(LAP), one informal play area and two local equipped areas for play (LEAP).
In total open space extends to 3.252 Ha or 20% of the 16 Ha site area.

The site lies within Area Forum 3, which is identified as having deficiencies in
the provision of natural and semi-natural open space, provision for children
and young people and allotments. The site has access to existing provision
for all of these typologies within the distances set out in policy RD4.



Page 25

Whilst the scheme includes provision for two of these typologies on-site, a
minor deficiency remains for provision for children and young people and
allotments. There remains a deficiency of natural and semi-natural also.
These are being addressed through the payment of a commuted sum for off-
site provision.

On this basis the proposals are considered acceptable in this regard and in
compliance with Policies CS(R)21, RD4, HE4 and HES of the Halton Delivery
and Allocations Local Plan.

6.8 Landscaping and Trees

Policy HE5 of the Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan, sets out

requirements for landscaping in new developments. The application is

supported by a Landscape and Visual Impact Appraisal together with a
landscaping strategy which is considered to be acceptable.

In addition to the above, the application is also supported by an Aboricultural
Impact Assessment. There are no Tree Preservation Orders in place within
the site, nor is the site located within a conservation area. The proposed
development seeks to retain as many existing trees as possible and
incorporate measures to enhance tree cover throughout the development. A
number of new trees are proposed to be planted as shown on the submitted
landscaping masterplan, which is considered to be acceptable. It is
considered that the proposed development can demonstrate compliance with
Policies CS(R)20 and HES5 of the Delivery and Allocations Local Plan.

6.9 Ecology & Biodiversity

Advice from the Council’s Ecology Adviser (MEAS) confirms that the
application site is located near to a number of designated sites which are
protected under the Conservation of Habitats & Species Regulations 2017 (as
amended): Mersey Estuary SPA AND Mersey Estuary Ramsar site.

Due to the development sites proximity to the international sites, recreational
pressure has been identified as a likely significant effect of the proposals. To
mitigate for this, the Applicant has agreed to subscribe to the Halton
recreational management Interim approach (HRMIA). On this basis, it is
considered that the potential impacts as a result of recreational pressure have
been addressed.

The consulted Ecologist from MEAS has requested a number of amendments
to the proposed mitigation measures following updates to the proposed
development. Their comments have been relayed to the applicant and it is
anticipated these amendments can be resolved prior to the committee
meeting. The Council’s Ecology advisor has recommended a series of
planning conditions to be attached to a grant of planning permission.

Under the Environment Act 2021, all planning permissions granted in England
(with a few exemptions) will be required to deliver at least 10% biodiversity net



Page 26

gain from November 2023. Until this legislation comes in to effect (November this
year) current national policy sets out that planning should provide biodiversity net
gains where possible and no net loss as a minimum.

The application is supported by a Preliminary Assessment of Biodiversity Net
Gain (BNG) Report. The report has been assessed by the Merseyside
Environmental Advisory Service Ecologist who has provided the following
comments:

The BNG report confirms areas on site to be retained and enhanced habitat
features, namely: majority of Bowers Brook to be retained and enhanced with
vegetated buffers; grassland habitats brought from low to medium condition; tree
lines 1 & 2, ponds 1 & 2; SUDs with wetland planting; wildflower strips; two
woodland pockets to be created; native shrub and hedgerow planting.

Best practice guidance for assessing urban trees, residential vegetated gardens
and other habitat types have been appropriately followed and referenced.

The submitted DEFRA Metric v3.1shows a pre-development baseline of 28.24
HU (Habitat Units) (13 Ha, of which over 10 Ha is modified grassland), 4.66
linear units and 1.12 river units. Post development habitat values, including
enhancement and creation create an increase of 40.07% HU, 106.37% linear
units (mixed native and ornamental hedgerows) and 0% change in river units.
Trading rules for trees and grassland are satisfied and provide the largest area of
BNG, but 3.36 HU of bramble scrub and mixed scrub are set to be lost without
adequate mitigation. | advise landscaping buffers maintained with led intensive
mowing can reduce the impact of these losses to invertebrates.

| advise that the proposed measures for habitat losses, retention, enhancement
and creation are acceptable and can be provided in more detail within a
Landscape Ecological Management Plan with a minimum 30 year management
period, which can be secured by planning condition (in line with paragraph 5.6 of
the BNG report).

The submitted Biodiversity Net Gain Report demonstrates that the proposed
development can deliver in excess of the 10% Biodiversity Net Gain
requirement for the site which is considered to be acceptable and in
accordance with Policy CS(R)20, HE1 and HE4 of the Halton Delivery and
Allocations Local Plan.

6.10 Highway Considerations

This application is one of a number of residential housing proposals being
brought forward as a result of the Land Allocations Delivery Plan’s publication.
Given the scale of the potential for new housing in the north of Widnes the
Council’s Highways Officer has advised that it was necessary for developers
to consider their sites in context with all of the neighbouring plots in order that
a comprehensive assessment of the future highway circumstances can be
best assessed. Further submissions have been made in this regard. The
Highway Officer has commented as follows:



Page 27

Cumulative Development

Applications 22/00178/FUL & 22/.00179/FUL by Redrow submitted an
additional sensitivity test report with traffic impact assessments which
identified that certain junctions in the proximity to the development would be
at or near to capacity in future year models. These junctions included Derby
Road, Lunts Heath Road as well as Wilmere Lane and the A5080 Cronton
Lane junction with Norlands Lane.

The introduction of improved, LTN compliant and high-quality active travel
measures would allow for greater access to sustainable and healthy travel
choices. This would create the space along a traffic heavy corridor with
excess of 7000 vehicle movements per day, for people to walk and cycle
safely to local facilities. It also provides the opportunity for a modal shift on
shorter journeys to promote health, well-being and positively contribute to the
Liverpool City Regions ambitions to reduce the dependency on car borne
trips.

Mott McDonald were commissioned to review i-transports proposals for active
travel measures along the northern corridor in Widnes from the Sixth Form
College to the borough boundary on South Lane and down to Farnworth
Village. These measures included segregated cycleways, kerb realignments,
the raising of junction levels and improved crossing points. In addition to this,
the capacity at junctions for vehicular traffic was also addressed to allow for
more efficient movements of vehicles and mitigate against queuing. This
included kerb realignment and the addition of MOVA to signal operations.

The proposed active travel route will allow for improved pedestrian and cycle
access along Cronton Lane. These measures tie into existing facilities at the
Black Horse roundabout to link to an LTN compliant two-way cycle lane along
the southern side of Lunts Heath Road. From here the route continues onto
Derby Road on its northern side to meet with Redrow’s 3m frontage cycle lane
before extending eastwards to the borough boundary. New crossing points
are proposed at the junction of Cronton Lane close to Norlands Lane and on
Lunts Heath Road to connect the Miller Homes development to public right of
way Widnes No.5 which is a well-used traffic free route to school and local
facilities in Farnworth.

These measures should contribute significantly to an improvement in travel
choices in the north of Widnes whilst aiming to mitigate against the cumulative
effect of residential development in the north of Widnes as well as
complimenting existing active travel schemes currently being delivered.

Contribution toward improved bus services were considered as part of the
overall package. The 26 and 26a serve this area however frequency is limited.
Ad(ditional services and a route extension was considered here however,
given that the vast majority of the Redrow site falls within the required 400m
of a bus service it was agreed that the proposals were potentially cost
prohibitive and could not be justified. As a result, the most effective solution
would be to provide a free bus pass to each household for the period of one



Page 28

year. This will have the benefit of improving resident’s awareness to the
service as well as potentially increasing its benefit to local people.

The contribution toward this scheme would be split pro-rata between the north
Widnes developments on a per unit basis.

The Highways Officer has made the following comments with regards to the
layout of the scheme as follows:

The latest design submission provides a crossing of the brook which passes
through the site. This is a welcome addition to the overall design.

It was agreed through discussion with the applicant that pedestrian and cycle
movements from the development crossing Lunts Heath Road could be
considered as part of a developer contribution to off-site works. The nearest
designated crossing points presently are, to the west and east, a maximum of
approximately 400m from the furthest site access in each direction. The site
directly faces Widnes footpath number 5 on the opposite side of Lunts Heath
Road. This public right of way provides a direct traffic free route to Farnworth
Village and Lunts Heath Primary School. We would wish to see the inclusion
of a signalised Toucan crossing to accompany the site to provide safe and
commodious access as per LTN 1/20 guidance.

Improvements to the overall design in regard to connectivity have been made.
There are however other matters in regard to the site layout that would still
need to be addressed.

These other matters are considered to be minor internal alterations and it is
anticipated that these outstanding matters indicated above can be resolved
prior to the Development Committee Meeting, and as such, members will be
updated at Committee.

6.11 Impact on Local Services

A number of the representations received as part of the public consultation
undertaken, have raised concerns regarding the impact the proposed
development would have on local amenities such as school places, dentists
and doctors capacities.

EDUCATION - The Local Education Authority have stated that there is
sufficient capacity within the Halton Borough in terms of primary and
secondary school provision based on existing population levels. In addition it
should also be noted that latest population projections do not predict
significant increases in the number of school age residents over the Plan
period to 2037. On this basis there is no anticipated shortfall in this provision
as a result of the DALP site allocations. Therefore, no financial contribution is
sought toward a pooled fund to increase existing capacity.

HEALTH SERVICES - No request for additional funding finance has been
received from any public body as a result of this application or in response to
the Council’s allocation of residential sites by the DALP. The concerns raised
in response to the public consultation exercise relate to existing service levels,



Page 29

such objections are based on an existing situation albeit one that additional
households borne from the development would marginally worsen.
Notwithstanding, no policy justification or scheme exists to justify mitigation or
financial contributions in this regard and it is not considered sufficient reason
for refusing a grant of planning permission for residential development on a
strategic housing site.

Potential impacts of the proposed development on Police Services has been
assessed later in the report.

6.12 Flood Risk and Drainage

The application site is located predominantly within flood zone 1. However,
areas of flood zone 2 and 3 have been identified associated with Bowers
Brook. This runs through the centre of the site and is classified as an ordinary
watercourse upstream of Lunt's Heath Road where it runs through the site.

The flood risk associated with Bowers Brook has been assessed through
analysis of an existing hydraulic model which was developed on behalf of the
Environment Agency (EA) in 2018. Model results are reported to demonstrate
that during the 1% AEP +70% flood event flows remain within the channel of
the watercourse and pass freely through the 3.3 x 1.3m culvert which carries
Lunt’'s Heath Road across Bower’s Brook. This matches the flood extents
shown on the Flood map for planning which identifies a narrow floodplain
extent associated with flood zone 3.

The assessment concludes that the likelihood of a blockage within the Lunt’s
Heath Road culvert is unlikely due to its large cross section. However,
analysis of blockage scenarios have been undertaken and indicate that the
consequences of a blockage during a 1% AEP +44% flood event, would be
largely limited to flooding of open space with only three properties within the
predicted flood extent. These three properties would remain safe from
flooding through as finished floor levels would be significantly above the
predicted flood levels.

The submitted Flood Risk Assessment assesses all other sources of flood risk
and concludes that the risk is low. Mitigation of residual risks is proposed to
be managed through the raising of finished floor levels to at least 39.68m
AOD or at least 150mm above wider ground levels. This would provide
300mm of freeboard above the 1% AEP +44% flood level. It is noted that
finished floor levels are confirmed on the Engineering Appraisal drawings
submitted with the application.

The layout of the proposed development avoids all areas of flood zone 3 and
2 with the exception of a proposed crossing of the Brook. Therefore, the
location of the development is considered to be appropriate

There appears to be sufficient standoff between the proposed development
and Bowers Brook to enable an 8m easement. It is noted that any
development within 8m of the top of bank of the watercourse would require an
Ordinary Watercourse consent.



Page 30

Since these comments have been received from the Lead Local Flood
Authority, there has been a change to the layout of the proposed development
and as such the LLFA have been re-consulted for updated comments. These
comments are awaited at the time of writing the committee report and
therefore a verbal update can be provided at a subsequent committee
meeting.

6.13 Ground Contamination

The application is supported by a Desk Study and Ground Investigation
Report. The report presents the results of a desk study (historical map and
data review) and a site investigation with resulting risk assessment.

The Council’'s Contaminated Land Officer has reviewed the submitted
information and has provided the following comments:

The site has been largely open agricultural land with some infilled ponds. Part
of the former Lunts Bridge Farm is present close to Lunts Heath Road. Part of
the site was formerly the recreation grounds associated with the Turner’s
Social Club, which included a bowling green. A UXO report concluded that a
small area of the site was high risk as a result of a recorded abandoned
unexploded anti-aircraft shell. A geophysical survey was conducted on site
within the high hazard and adjacent areas, with no materials relating to UXOs
observed.

The site investigation revealed very little in the way of significant contamination,
the majority of investigation points showing uncontaminated natural soils
overlying glacial clay deposits. Some contamination was noted in two locations,
arsenic and asbestos being the contaminants of concern. Elevated ground gas
concentrations were recorded in the locations of former ponds. The report
makes recommendation for remedial measures to deal with the soil
contamination, either source removal or a cover system, and for the ground
gases, either source removal or protection measures for the impacted plots.
Overall | am satisfied that the submitted information is suitable to demonstrate
that the site is suitable for use, with the implementation of the outline remedial
measures. However, there are a couple of areas that | would recommend
require further investigation:

e The small, adjacent development of Church View Close was formerly the
site of the Turner Brothers Social Club, which was heavily impacted by
asbestos contamination due the fabric of the original buildings and the use
of ACM in hardstanding and the infilling of an on-site pond. TP 35 is close to
the boundary of the site and is the location impacted by asbestos, | would
therefore recommend that additional samples are analysed for asbestos
along the perimeter of the development site and the former club location.

e Also associated with the club is a former bowling green, which | don’t think
has been targeted by the investigation. Historically, the development of
bowling greens has frequently identified a contaminated ash/clinker



Page 31

drainage layer beneath the turf. This area should be targeted for additional
sampling and analysis.

e The final point associated with that part of the site is the historical recreation
ground, which may have land drains, which given the ownership and close
proximity to the asbestos cement works, may be asbestos cement pipes.
This is a point of note to be included as part of the watching brief for the
development.

e Part of the former Lunt’s Bridge Farm is included with the development area,
| recommend that additional investigation is undertaken once the on-site
buildings have been cleared.

| believe that it would be reasonable to require the above points to be
addressed as part of the implementation of the remediation strategy that will be
required to be submitted in advance of development commencing.

Therefore | have no objection to the application subject to conditions requiring a
remedial strategy and verification reporting to be submitted (that includes
addressing the specific points above).

Since receiving these comments, the applicant has submitted a remediation
strategy up front to negate the need for the submission of one to be
conditioned. This strategy is under consideration by the Contaminated Land
Officer and comments are awaited at this time. Members will be updated
accordingly.

Based on the above, the proposal is considered to demonstrate compliance
with Policies CS23 and HES of the Delivery and Allocations Local Plan and
can ensure that any ground contamination is dealt with appropriately.

6.14 Noise

The application is accompanied by a Noise Assessment which has been
updated to reflect the latest site layout. The application site is primarily
adjacent to existing residential areas and Green Belt Land with some
commercial/industrial uses immediately adjacent to the south east site
boundary. The main noise source in the area both day and night is from traffic
on Watkinson Way (A557).

Road traffic sound measurements have been undertaken for Watkinson Way
(A557) and Lunt’s Heath Road (A5080). In addition to this, an attended
commercial sound survey was conducted along the south eastern boundary
adjacent to the commercial/industrial premises, however no commercial
sound was noted. The report states that the commercial premises seem to be
mostly redundant.

The assessment has recommended a number of mitigation measures in the
form of acoustic barriers in order to control road traffic sound and achieve the
lowest practicable noise levels in accordance with BS 8233. Furthermore,
higher specification glazing is required for plots fronting Watkinson Way.



Page 32

The assessment concludes that with mitigation in place, no adverse impact is
predicted day or night at the receptors due to road traffic sound.

The Council’s Environmental Health Officer has advised that, whenever
possible, they would like to see the sound levels in BS 8233 to be achievable
with windows open, however it is appreciated that for this development it may
not be realistic for this site at all new properties given the proximity to
Watkinson Way.

It is considered that the implementation of the proposed mitigation measures
can be secured by condition and that the proposed development
demonstrates compliance with Policies CS23 and HE7 of the Halton Delivery
and Allocations Local Plan.

6.15 Air quality

The application is accompanied by an Air Quality Assessment which
considerers the impact of emissions of dust from the site during the
construction phase and in relation to the increase in vehicle activity along
associated highways.

The report states that the impacts associated with dust and fine particulate
matter released during the construction phase of the development were
assessed in accordance with guidance from the Institute of Air Quality
(IAQM).

The construction phase assessment determined that the risk of dust soiling
effects was high for earthworks, construction and trackout. The risk of human
health effects was classed as low for earthworks, construction and trackout.
With the site-specific mitigation measures identified in Section 5.1 of the Air
Quality Report in place, the dust and fine particulate effects from earthworks,
construction and trackout is considered to be “not significant” in accordance
with IAQM guidance.

The air dispersion model ADMS-Roads was used to assess the potential air
quality impacts associated with development-generated road traffic emissions.
As per the criteria outlined in the guidance from Environmental Protection UK
(EPUK) and IAQM, the assessment predicted that the development would
have a negligible impact on concentrations of nitrogen dioxide.

Predicted pollutant concentrations within the development are predicted to be
below the relevant annual mean objectives and limit values, with the
development in place. The report concluded that the effect of the proposed
development on sensitive human receptors is therefore considered to be “not
significant”.

The impact of the proposed development is predicted to be “not significant”,
however mitigation measures will assist in reducing any potential impact and
general best practice measures in relation to air quality could be implemented.



Page 33

The Air Quality Assessment demonstrates that the proposed development will
accord with all relevant national planning policy and will not lead to an
unacceptable risk from air pollution. The demonstration of a negligible impact
under the IAQM guidance draws the Environmental Health Officer to the
conclusion that there is no justifiable objection to the application on the basis
of air quality.

A number of objections have raised concerns regarding the impact of the
development on the air quality of the immediate surrounding area. It is not
considered that the proposed development would exacerbate issues with air
quality to such a degree that this would warrant the refusal of the application
on this basis.

Based on the above, the proposal is considered acceptable from an air quality
perspective in compliance with Policies CS23 and HE7 of the Halton Delivery
and Allocations Local Plan.

6.16 Archaeology

The application is supported by a Written Scheme of Investigation for
Archaeological Evaluation, prepared by Lanpro Services. Cranshaw Hall, a
scheduled moated site (NHLE 1011888) is situated over 200m to the north
west of the application site. The moated site is occupied by farm buildings
constructed in the 19t and 20" centuries, although it is understood that the
moat dates to around 1400.

Following consultation with the Cheshire Archaeological Planning Advisory
Service (CAPAS), a programme of evaluation has been agreed to comprise of
two trail trenches targeting an area that has potential to have medieval origins
and therefore is of archaeological interest. The submitted Written Scheme of
Investigation provides detailed methodology for undertaking the programme of
archaeological trial trenching and states that a formal report on the results of
this work will be produced.

The Council’s Development Management Archaeologist has reviewed the
submitted information and has advised that the document outlines an
appropriate scheme of works which will allow the recognition and recording of
any archaeological deposits present on site.

There is, therefore, no objection to the start of development, subject to the
enactment of the agreed mitigation set out within the Scheme of Investigation
and the production of a formal report on the results of this work, which can be
secured via planning condition.

The proposed development demonstrates compliance with Policy HE2 of the
Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan and is therefore considered to be
acceptable.



Page 34

6.17 Health and well-being

Policy CS(R)22 of the Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan states that
healthy environments will be supported and healthy lifestyles encouraged
across the borough by ensuring that applications for large scale major
developments are supported by a Health Impact Assessment (HIA) to
enhance potential positive impacts of development and mitigate against any
negative impacts.

The application is accompanied by a HIA. It concludes that the overall health
impact of the proposed development would be positive and the potential
adverse impacts arising from the construction and development of this site are
likely to be minimal given the location of the site.

The assessment provides recommendations to seek maximising health gains
and remove or mitigate potential adverse impacts on health. It also considers
that the development would have a positive health effect in relation to the
majority of the key health themes as a result of the proposed design measures.

It is considered that the proposed development can demonstrate compliance
with Policy CS(R)22 of the Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan.

6.18 Waste Management

Policies WM8 and WM9 of the Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local Plan
are applicable to this application along with policy CS24 of the Halton Delivery
and Allocations Local Plan.

In terms of waste prevention, construction management by the applicant will
deal with issues of this nature and based on the development size, the
developer would be required to produce a Site Waste Management Plan to
deal with waste during the construction period. The submission of a Waste
Audit/Site Waste Management Plan should be secured by condition.

Information relating to household waste storage and access for refuse
collection vehicles has been provided and is considered to be acceptable. Its
implementation can be secured by condition.

The proposal is considered to be compliant with policies WM8 and WM9 of the
Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local Plan and policy CS24 of the Halton
Delivery and Allocations Local Plan.

6.19 Designing Out Crime

Policy GR1 (29g) of the Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan states that
the Council will consider whether the design of proposed development is
appropriate in reducing the fear of crime by promoting safe and connected
environments. The application has been reviewed by the Designing Out Crime
Officer at Cheshire Constabulary.



Page 35

The scheme has been designed to be forward facing, creating outlook for new
residents and improving natural surveillance.

The proposed green spaces within the residential development are
appropriately overlooked to ensure them not becoming a hotspot for Anti
Social Behaviour. The Neighbourhood Equipped Area of Play (NEAP) is very
easily accessible located centrally within the proposed residential
development.

Recommendations have been received that doors and windows should
comply to PAS 24:2016 and that the developer should give some
consideration to gaining Secured by Design National Building Approval.
These matters could be dealt with by way of an informative.

The proposed development layouts adequately address the requirements of
the Design of Residential Development SPD (the SPD) and follows good
urban design principles with complementary plot layouts that ensure good
natural surveillance and convey a pedestrian and community safe sense of
place. The Council has consulted Cheshire Police as part of the applications
determination, a response has been returned raising no issues with regard to
designing out crime.

In terms of crime prevention, the proposed residential development is
considered to accord with Policy GR1 (2g) of the Halton Delivery and
Allocations Local Plan and the Designing for Community Safety
Supplementary Planning Document.

Comments have also been received from a Principle Planner at Cheshire
Constabulary stating that given the scale, nature and significance of the
development proposals and associated demands it will pace on Cheshire
Constabulary, the force considers it appropriate for the applicant to contribute
towards the provision of police infrastructure by way of a S106 contribution to
mitigate the impacts of the development. The state that:

The proposed development of 328 dwellings has the potential to increase the
population of the site by 1044 persons. Consequently, the development will
place an additional demand on police services and infrastructure capacity that
does not currently exist.

The Constabulary’s Designing Out Crime Officers encourage the
incorporation of physical designing out crime measures within schemes to
promote safety and security and reduce the propensity for crime and disorder.
However, in isolation, they do not remove the need for operational police
service deployment for new developments.

A sum of £79,691.19 is sought from this development to mitigate its impacts
on Cheshire Constabulary infrastructure. The contribution is itemised in the
table below identifying the infrastructure necessitated by the proposed
development.



Page 36

Infrastructure Area Total cost Timing of
requirement delivery
Staff set up Widnes and Runcormn £12,486.10 TBC
LPUs and Winsford HQ
Vehicles Widnes and Runcorn £7,583.94 TBC
LPUs
Premises Widnes LPU £59621.15 TBC
Total £79,691.19

In light of this request for sums, The Council have sought advice from
Counsel who support the below position and the arguments which have been
put forward:

The Council do not agree that the evidence provided by the Cheshire
Constabulary in support of their request meets the 3 tests set out in s.122 of
the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010

The contribution is not justified by the Halton Delivery and Allocations Local
Plan 2022 (“DALP?”) or its evidence base. It is accepted that Policy CS(R)7 of
the DALP supports the principle of developer contributions funding police
infrastructure. However, it is for the Council to determine the appropriate level
of infrastructure and whether a contribution or mitigation is necessary. As set
out in the IDP, the Council has already considered the level of police
infrastructure, in consultation with the Cheshire Constabulary, and concluded
that further collaborative work is required before infrastructure requirements
can be justified. It is further envisaged that such contributions would be set
out in future planning documents.

It is not evident that a funding gap exists. Cheshire Constabulary state that
the link between Police funding and population growth is not a simple one and
an increase in population in an area does not lead to an overall increase in
central government grant. However, no further information has been provided
on how grant funding in distributed and the formula that has been used to
calculate the amount of infrastructure contribution is based on population.

The Council’s research suggests that the police allocation formula used by the
Home Office to distribute central funds is based on various data sources,
including population density. The formula itself appears to still use population
estimates from 2013 and given that population rates in Cheshire have risen at
a lower rate than the national average, this suggests that there may be a
potential overfunding in the central government grant for the Cheshire area.
According to figures produced by the Office of National Statistics, the
estimated population in Cheshire in 2013 was 1,037,327 or 1.82% out of an
estimated population of 56,948,229 in England and Wales. In 2020, the
estimated population in Cheshire was 1,071,666 or 1.79% out of an estimated
population of 59,719,724. If the 2013 estimated population figures are indeed
used, Cheshire is potentially being funded for an additional 16,145 people that
it does not have.



Page 37

Equally, the evidence fails to take into account the increase in revenue which
will be generated by the development in Council tax precept.

If a funding gap exists, it is not clear that the alleged impact is caused by the
development as opposed to some other reason, such as a systemic problem
in the way funding is distributed or the Government’s austerity programme.
Whilst it is stated that Cheshire Constabulary will receive funding for an
additional 240 officers by the end of 2024 to address the reduction in officer
numbers in preceding years caused by austerity and that this is earmarked for
existing settlements rather than in response to population growth, it is
impossible to determine what the previous impact of austerity has had on the
deficiencies within the police budget from the evidence that has been
provided.

The assumption that 100% of the population for the housing development will
be ‘new’ to the area thereby resulting in population growth of 1,044 people is
incorrect. There will be an element of migration within the borough and the
wider Cheshire area. The Census from 2011 shows that 9,326 people living in
Halton had a different address to that the year before and that, of these, 7,720
(83%) had moved from an address within Cheshire. The Council therefore
dispute the alleged level of impact on police resources that would be caused
by the development.

In respect of the request for funding for additional accommodation, it is not
clear how this will be used given that both police stations are at full capacity
and accommodation is only required for an additional 1.6 staff. No detail is
provided as to where they will be accommodated or whether there are plans
to extend current premises.

Therefore, as applications have to be determined in accordance with the
Local Plan and material considerations, on this basis the Council concluded
that the tests had not been met and therefore intend to determine the
application accordingly.

6.20 Sustainable Development and Climate Change

Policy CS(R)19 of the Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan states that
all new development should be sustainable and be designed to have regard to
the predicted effects of climate change including reducing carbon dioxide
emissions and adapting to climate conditions. The policy sets out a number of
principles to be used as a guide for future development.

The application is supported by an Energy and Sustainability Statement. The
proposals within this statement demonstrate that the required reduction of
15% from the Target Emission Rate (TER) as set out in Part L of the Building
Regulations (2013) has been met and it is expected the site will achieve an
average reduction of 35.05% carbon emissions (kgCO2/year).

Policy GR5 of the Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan states that the
incorporation of renewable and low carbon energy into developments will be
encouraged, particularly as part of major schemes. The proposed



Page 38

development would follow the energy hierarchy focusing on a fabric first
approach and in addition to this, the following technologies have been
deemed suitable for this development:

Air Source Heat Pump (ASHP)

Photovoltaic (PV) Technology

Flue Gas Heat Recovery System (FGHRS)
Waste Water Heat Recovery System (WWHRS)

An analysis of the various low carbon and renewable energy proposals has
been undertaken by the Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service and is
considered to be suitable. These measures are welcomed and demonstrate
consideration of policies CS(R)19 and GR5 of the Halton Delivery and
Allocations Local Plan. The provision of these technologies can be secured by
a suitably worded planning condition.

6.21 Issues raised in representations

All issues raised in the representations received, which are material to the
planning application’s consideration are responded to above.

. CONCLUSIONS

Whilst there is an element of non-compliance detailed in relation to housing
and affordable housing tenure mix, this is not considered to be contrary to the
development plan as a whole.

Subject to resolution of the outstanding Highways amendments and the
receipt of updated comments from the LLFA and MEAS, based on the above
assessment and subject to the proposed to be issued with a planning
approval conditions and legal agreement provisions, the proposal is deemed
acceptable. The proposed development would provide residential
development on an allocated housing site in a sustainable location,
contributing to housing need in the Borough and delivery of high quality
development and on site open space provision.

When assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole, taking into
account the details of the scheme and any material planning considerations,
the proposal is thus sustainable development for which the NPPF carries a
presumption in favour.

As such, the proposal is considered to accord with the Development Plan and
national policy in the NPPF.

. RECOMMENDATIONS

That authority be delegated to the Operational Director — Planning, Policy and
Transportation, to determine the application in consultation with the Chair or
Vice Chair of the Committee, following the satisfactory resolution of the



Page 39

outstanding issues relating to highways amendments, updates in line with
comments from MEAS and updated comments from the LLFA.

Upon satisfactory resolution the application is to be approved subject to the

following:

a) S106 agreement

b) Schedule of conditions set out below

C) That if the S106 agreement is not signed within a reasonable period of

time, authority given to refuse this planning application.

Recommended conditions as follows with any additional conditions

recommended through the resolution of the Highways amendments, updates
in line with comments from MEAS and updated LLFA comments to be added

to the list below:

. CONDITIONS

CoNOIORWN =~

18.
19.
20.
21.
22.

23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.
31.

Standard 3 year permission

Condition specifying plans

Levels

External materials

Hard and soft landscaping

POS implementation and management

Waste audit/site wide waste management plan

Household waste in accordance with approved plan

Noise mitigation measures in accordance with noise report

. Air quality mitigation measures in accordance with report

. Soft tree felling measures

. Tree protection

. Landscape Ecological Management Plan

. Bird and bat boxes scheme

. Construction Environmental Management Plan

. Natural England Bat Licence

. Reasonable avoidance measures for amphibians, terrestrial mammals and

hedgehogs

Breeding birds protection

Japanese knotweed method statement & validation report

Site remediation and mitigation

Relating to unidentified contamination

Implementation of measures for reducing carbon emissions and adapting to
climatic conditions

Archaeological mitigation and results report

Lighting scheme

Vehicle access and parking to be constructed prior to commencement of use
Removal of permitted development rights

Boundary treatments

Restriction of construction and delivery hours

Implementation of play facilities

Traffic calming measures

Cycle parking



Page 40

32. Tactile crossings and dropped kerbs at junction crossing points

10.BACKGROUND PAPERS

The submitted planning applications are background papers to the report.
Other background papers specifically mentioned and listed within the report are
open to inspection by contacting dev.control@halton.gov.uk

11.SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
As required by:

The National Planning Policy Framework (2021);

e The Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (England) Order 2015; and

e The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)
(Amendment) (England) Regulations 2015.

This statement confirms that the local planning authority has worked proactively
with the applicant to secure developments that improve the economic, social
and environmental conditions of Halton.


mailto:dev.control@halton.gov.uk

APPLICATION NO:
LOCATION:

PROPOSAL:

WARD:
PARISH:
APPLICANT:
AGENT:

DEVELOPMENT PLAN
ALLOCATION:

DEPARTURE

REPRESENTATIONS:

KEY ISSUES:

RECOMMENDATION:

Page 41

22/00377/FUL
Land at South Lane, Widnes.

Proposed demolition of existing buildings
and the erection of residential
development (Use Class C3) with
associated landscaping, access/egress,
car parking, drainage, and other
necessary supporting infrastructure

Farnworth

N/A

Prospect Homes GB
Barton Willmore

National Planning Policy Framework
(2021)

Delivery and Allocations Local Plan
(‘DALP’) (March 2022).

Allocated Residential Site Ref:W9 and
W11 (part of)

Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste
Local Plan (2013)
No

Public Representations received: 13

Details summarised and addressed below
through the report.

Principle of development, affordable
housing, connectivity, layout, Highway
impact, mineral protection zone,
residential privacy and overlooking,
ecology, access, drainage, compensatory
measures re former Green Belt site.

Approve with conditions

Agenda Item 3b



Page 42

APPLICATION SITE
The Site

The application site forms part of site allocation ref: W11 in the Halton DALP. The
site is bound by the A5080 to the north and a rail line to the south. The land to
the west is subject to planning application ref: 22/00179/FUL that was ratified for
planning approval by the Committee in May. The land to the east is the
remainder of the land allocation ref:W11. The land is predominantly comprises of
undeveloped land that is currently arable farmland. There are parts of the
development site that are currently occupied by buildings that comprise the
agricultural holding that is set on the land allocation. These are proposed to be
demolished.

The boundary consists of mature hedgerows and scattered broad leaved trees. A
main river watercourse bisects the site.

Access is proposed to be taken from Derby Rd. currently the speed limit is
50mph. It is proposed that this speed limit will be reduced to 30mph so that it is
consistent with the road speed adjacent to residential development at nearer the
Moorefield Road junction.

In the wider context the development site is located at the northern edge of the
Widnes conurbation beyond that of the existing residential development off
Moorefield Rd, and located east of the Watkinson Way (A557) and south west of
the Bold Heath Quarry.

Planning History

The application site is an undeveloped greenfield site allocations. There are no
associated planning history records.

THE APPLICATION

The Proposal

The planning applications was submitted with the following description of
development:

Proposed demolition of existing buildings and the erection of residential
development (Use Class C3) with associated landscaping, access/egress,
car parking, drainage, and other necessary supporting infrastructure

Documentation

The planning application was submitted with the following supporting
documentation:

e Application form

e Proposed Plans



Page 43

e Planning Statement

e Air quality assessment

e Arboricultural impact assessment

e Construction and waste method statement

e Design and access statement

¢ Flood risk and drainage assessment

e Heritage statement

e Landscape and visual impact assessment

e Landscape management plan

¢ Noise assessment

e Preliminary ecological appraisal

e Site investigation report

e Statement of community involvement

e Transport assessment

e Travel plan

Policy Context

Members are reminded that planning law requires that development proposals be

determined

in accordance with the development plan, unless material

considerations indicate otherwise.

Delivery and Allocations Local Plan (‘DALP’) (adopted March 2022)

CS(R)1
CS(R)3

CS(R)6

CS(R)7

CS(R)12
CS(R)13
CS(R)15
CS(R)18
CS(R)19
CS(R)20
CS(R)21

3

Halton’s Spatial Strategy

Housing Supply and Locational Priorities
Green Belt

Infrastructure Provision

Housing Mix and Specialist Housing
Affordable Homes

Sustainable Transport

High Quality Design

Sustainable Development and Climate Change
Natural and Historic Environment

Green Infrastructure



CS(R)22
CS(R)23
CS(R)24
CS(R)25
RD1
RD4

C1

C2
HC10
HE1
HE2
HE4
HE5
HE7
HES
HE9
HE10
GR1
GR2
GR3
GR5

Page 44

Health and Well-Being

Managing Pollution and Risk

Waste

Minerals

Residential Development Allocations
Greenspace Provision for Residential Development
Transport Network and Accessibility

Parking standards

Education

Natural Environment and Nature Conservation
Heritage Assets and the Historic Environment
Green Infrastructure and Greenspace

Trees and Landscape

Pollution and Nuisance

Land Contamination

Water Management and Flood Risk

Minerals Safeguarding Area

Design of Development

Amenity

Boundary Fences and Walls

Renewable and Low Carbon Energy

Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local Plan (2013)

The following policies are of relevance:

WM8
WM9

Waste Prevention and Resource Management
Sustainable Management Design and Layout for New Development

Supplementary Planning Documents (‘SPD’)

e Design of Residential Development SPD

e Draft Open Spaces Supplementary Planning Document

e Designing for Community Safety



Page 45

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Below are material considerations relevant to the determination of this planning
application.

National Planning Policy Framework (‘NPPF’)

The last iteration of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was
published in July 2021 and sets out the Government’s planning policies for
England and how these should be applied.

Paragraph 47 states that planning law requires planning applications to be
determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. Decisions on applications should be made as
quickly as possible and within statutory timescales unless a longer period has
been agreed by the applicant in writing.

Paragraph 81 states that planning policies and decisions should help create the
conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight
should be placed on the need to support economic growth and productivity,
taking into account both local business needs and wider opportunities for
development.

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

Together, the National Planning Policy Framework and National Planning
Practice Guidance set out what the Government expects of local authorities. The
overall aim is to ensure the planning system allows land to be used for new
homes and jobs, while protecting valuable natural and historic environments.

Other Considerations

The application has been considered having regard to Article 1 of the First
Protocol of the Human Rights Act 1998, which sets out a person’s rights to the
peaceful enjoyment of property and Article 8 of the Convention of the same Act
which sets out his/her rights in respect for private and family life and for the
home. Officers consider that the proposed development would not be contrary to
the provisions of the above Articles in respect of the human rights of surrounding
residents/occupiers.

Equality Duty

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 created the public sector equality duty.
Section 149 states:-

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the
need to:



Page 46

a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct
that is prohibited by or under this Act;

b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

Officers have taken this into account and given due regard to this statutory duty,
and the matters specified in Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 in the
determination of this application.

There are no known equality implications arising directly from this development
that justify the refusal of planning permission.

CONSULTATIONS

The application was advertised via the following methods: Site notice posted
near to the site, press notice, and Council website. Surrounding properties were
notified by letter.

Following the Applicant’'s modification of the scheme a follow up 21-day
consultation exercise was issued to neighbours and statutory consultees.

The following organisations have been consulted and any comments received
have been summarised below and in the assessment section of the report where
appropriate:

National Highways

No objection
Environment Agency

No objection
Coal Authority
No objection
United Utilities

No objection — Conditions have been recommended that will form the basis of an
informative to any grant of planning permission.

National Grid
No response

Natural England

No objection
Cheshire Police




Page 47

No objection - This is subject to the request for section 106. Consideration of
Cheshire Police responses are set out in the considerations of the S106 section
of the report. As the Council has not agreed to this request this should be treated
as an objection.

St. Helens
No objection
Warrington Borough Council

No objection
Network Rail
No objection

Council Services

Archaeology

No Objection — subject to use of planning condition to ensure monitoring of site.
Further discussion is set out in the archaeology section of the report.

Highways

No objection — discussed further in Highway section of the report.

HBC Contaminated Land

No Objection in principle, subject to use of suitably worded planning conditions.

Planning Policy

No Objection

Lead Local Flood Authority

No objection subject to the use of planning conditions.
MEAS — Ecology and Waste Advisor

No objections subject to the use of appropriately worded planning conditions and
off site mitigation to be secured by S106 agreement.

Open Spaces

No objection
Landscape Architect

No objection
Environmental Health

No objection



Page 48

REPRESENTATIONS

A total of 13No. representations have been received as a result of the publicity
undertaken for the planning application, the details of which are summarised
below.

Insufficient school facilities to cope with additional population

Road infrastructure cannot cope

No local shops therefore over reliance on cars

Reduced greenery

Increase in air and traffic pollution

Severe impact on wildlife

Council should support Green Belt

Council should ensure there is sufficient medical provision for existing
residents

Children should go to school within walking distance

There are multiple developments within the vicinity

Trees at far end of St. Wilfreds Rd should be retained

The proposed playground will result in constant noise

Loss of Green Belt land

Loss of farmland

Proposal does not meet the exceptional test required to lose land to
development in the Green Belt

Negative impact on health and wellbeing

Destruction of wildlife habitat

Loss of established trees contrary to the Halton Forest Project.
Council has a statutory duty to consider the protection of trees when
granting planning permission.

Development will bring more cars and more road noise

Insufficient local services to account for population increase e.g. doctors,
dentists, schools.

Existing traffic problems before new development

Damage local wildlife

Destroy previously allocated Green Belt land

Development risks merging with neighbouring local authorities
Pollution from noise, dust and light

Nearest green space is a drive away

No nearby area of recreation

Potential damage to watercourse

Potential release of historic chemicals or coal into the watercourse
Potential damage to new dwellings

Roads in nearby development have not yet been adopted

Loss of farmland

Halton has already met its requirement to build houses



Page 49

ASSESSMENT
Principle of Development

Planning application 22/00337/FUL concerns the residential development of W11
(part of) at the northern edge of Widnes. This is consistent with planning policy
RD1 ‘Residential Development Allocations’ of the Halton DALP.

Policy RD1 does not stipulate a delivery restriction regarding timing of delivery or
a site-specific infrastructure requirements above the general decision making
policies as set out in the policy section above. An indicative housing capacity
figure is proposed for each allocated site within the table of Policy RD1. The
development proposal presented by application 22/00337/FUL is consistent with
the indicative figure with a proposed layout plan providing 99 residential
dwellings.

Paragraph 1 of RD1 provides clarification for the avoidance of doubt that the
housing sites allocated by the DALP are not granted permission in principle.
Paragraph 2 states that the identified strategic housing allocations will assist in
the delivery of the requirements set out in Policy CSR3 ‘Housing Supply and
Locational Priorities’.

Policy CSR3 sets a housing supply priority for the Borough at 8,050 additional
dwellings for the 2014-2037 period based on an average of 350 dwellings per
year. The policy confirms that strategic residential location SRL7 ‘North East
Widnes’ will contribute toward this housing supply. Site allocation W11 form part
of the SRL7 location, therefore the application sites are recognized by the DALP
as key sites in the delivery of the Council’s housing land supply priority. The
proposed development densities are broadly in line with DALP expectations,
therefore it is considered that the development will contribute to the Boroughs
housing needs in line with planning policy.

Residential development on former Green Belt Sites

Paragraph 3 of RD1 states that; ‘Residential development on Green Belt sites, or
former Green Belt sites allocated in this Plan, will need to provide appropriate
mitigation for the loss of green belt land in line with NPPF requirements’.

Policy CSR6 ‘Green Belt’, paragraph 3 states, ‘Development proposals for the
sites removed from the Green Belt and allocated or safequarded in this plan
should include compensatory improvements to the environmental quality and
accessibility of remaining Green Belt land to offset the impact of the removal of
the land from the Green Belt’.

Paragraph 7.71 in the policy justification to CSR6 provides clarification as to the
form such compensatory measures can take; Compensatory improvements could
include new or enhanced green infrastructure, woodland planting, landscape and
visual enhancements, improvements to biodiversity, new or enhanced walking or
cycling routes and improved access to new, enhanced or existing recreational
and playing field provision.

9



Page 50

Prior to the adoption of the DALP in March 2022 the application site was
designated as Green Belt land. Therefore the requirements of RD1 para 3 and
CSRG6 para 3 apply. In order to address this policy requirement, the Applicant has
agreed to a financial contribution toward a North Widnes active travel corridor
and facilitated its route through the application site.

With continued participation from the wider development delivery within SRL7
sites as demonstrated by previously considered planning applications
22/00178/FUL and 22/00179/FUL, the north Widnes active travel corridor will
provide a sustainable travel link and provide improved access to the Green Belt
by utilizing and connecting to existing infrastructure at Rivendell Garden Centre
and the footpath link to the west.

The Applicant has incorporated connectivity to the North Widnes Active Travel
corridor through their respective site layouts by provision of a footpath through
the proposed layout and in addition have confirmed that they will contribute to off
site payments toward the delivery of the North Widnes Active Travel Corridor.
These payments will be secured through a legal agreement by means of S106.
The resulting active travel corridor will provide a sustainable mode of travel for
the benefit of the Widnes population, particularly those residing at the northern
edge of the existing conurbation boundary as well as future site residents of the
newly allocated sites.

It is considered that the above can be adequately secured and, as such, that the
Applicant has had sufficient regard to the policy based requirement to undertake
suitable compensatory measures with the development of a former Green Belt
site. It is considered that the proposals accord with the Development Plan having
particular regard to Policies RD1 and CSR6.

Housing Mix

Both policies CS(R)3 and CS(R)12 requires on sites of 10 or more dwellings, the
mix of new property types delivered are encouraged to contribute to addressing
identified needs (size of homes and specialist housing) as quantified in the most
up to date Strategic Housing Market Assessment, unless precluded by site
specific constraints, economic viability or prevailing neighbourhood
characteristics. The Mid-Mersey SHMA 2016 sets out the demographic need for
different sizes of homes, identifying that the majority of market homes need to
provide two or three bedrooms, with more than 50% of homes being three
bedroomed. The policy justification recognises that a range of factors including
affordability pressures and market signals will continue to play an important role
in the market demand for different sizes of homes. Evidence from the Mid-
Mersey Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) demonstrates that there
is a need for a greater diversity of housing types and sizes across market
housing as well as in affordable accommodation. The housing type profile in
Halton currently differs from the national pattern with higher proportions of
medium/large terraced houses and bungalows than the average for England and
Wales. Consequently, there is under provision of other dwelling types, namely

10



Page 51

detached homes and also to a certain extent, flatted homes. The SHELMA (LCR)
shows an above average representation of detached and semi-detached sales
however does not breakdown for bedroom requirements. In Halton this is due to
a particularly high proportion of new build sales that upwardly skew the figures
for detached and semi-detached sales.

It is important to rebalance the type and size of housing across the Borough and
to ensure that the most appropriate form of housing is provided by listening to the
market to ensure the requirements are met for current and future residents.

The following table illustrates the proposed residential mix.

Market Housing Affordable
1 bed units 0
2 bed units 0 8 (40%)
3 bed units 36 (46%) 12 (60%)
4 bed units 43 (54%) 0
Total 99 (80%) 20 (20%)

The table below provides the objectively assessed housing need breakdown as
presented in the 2016 SHMAA.

Market Affordable
1 bed units 6.5% 44.8%
2 bed units 30.4% 28.4 %
3 bed units 52.7% 23.8%
4+ bed units 10.5% 3.0%

From the two tables, the Applicant is under providing in 3 bedroomed market
dwellings and over providing in 4 bedroomed market dwellings. No provision is
given to 1 and 2 bedroomed houses.

The applications provide for 20% affordable housing in line with policy CS(R)13.
The bedroom mix for the proposed affordable units differs from the need
identified in the SHMA as set out in the table above. The application details 8No.
2 bedroomed dwellings and 12No. 3 bedroomed properties. These house types
are comparable to the remainder of the development site. The Applicant has
commendably aspired to achieve a tenure blind development scheme. The larger
offering of house types for the affordable units would suggest that this has in part
been achieved.

The Council has received notifications from registered social housing providers

11



Page 52

as part of its consideration of the wider housing developments that comprise the
SRL7 housing allocations. Such notifications identify a need of properties in the
range of 1No to 3No bedroomed dwellings. Whilst there are no 1 bedroom units
on site, the offering of 2 and 3 bedroomed units is a qualitative improvement over
the provision of 1 bedroomed units.

With regard to market housing, the Applicant has set a focus on delivering 4
bedroomed detached properties accounting for 54% of the market provision.

This is in contrast to the SHMA which identified 89% of need for market housing
as being for 3 bedrooms or less. It should be noted that there is a difference
between ‘need’ and ‘demand’ in housing terms with many families, where
finances allow, choosing to occupy a larger properties than strictly needed to
meet their bedroom requirements. The Applicant is a recognised housebuilder
and is confident that the housing market in the locality requires the housing
product they are seeking permission for. They consider the proposed units are an
appropriate mix for the locality.

Since the completion of the latest SHMA in 2016, Government has introduced
“First Homes” a specific form of discounted market sale as a preferred form of
affordable housing. This may have skewed the need and demand figures slightly
with some previously identified demand for smaller market housing now being
met by “First Homes” and “Shared Ownership” properties which respectively
represent 50% and 25% of the affordable units.

Whilst the mix of property types is not neatly aligned to the 2016 SHMA, the
policy requirement encourages proposals to contribute to addressing identified
needs and is more advisory than a prescriptive requirement. Given the contrast
of the housing mix proposed when compared to the 2016 SHMA, there is
considered to be a non-compliance with Policies CS(R)3 and CS(R)12, however
based on the assessment set out that there are not sufficient grounds to warrant
the refusal of this planning application.

The Applicant is providing two and three bedroomed affordable properties whilst
this departs from the SHMAA study, it does provide larger properties than have
been approved previously as part of the delivery of planning policy CS(R)13.
Consideration should also be given toward the site constraint that has limited the
design and layout of the property due to the shape of the site and its proximity to
a main river that requires a setback from the river edge due to EA licensing
requirements.

On balance it is considered that the Applicant has offered an appropriate mix of
dwelling types that contribute in part to the needs of the Borough as set out in the
SHMAA study. The Applicant is a housing industry developer, their position is
that they are an expert in the market forces of new build sales and have followed
what they consider to be a local market need to be met. The social housing
offering departs from the needs set by the SHMAA, however, the Applicant has
adopted a qualitative approach to this housing delivery that when in combination
with other sites already considered within the SRL7 housing sites allocation will
offer a range of affordable house types.

12



Page 53

Affordable Housing

As per the terms of planning policy CSR13, residential development proposals on
strategic housing sites are required to deliver 20% affordable housing as part of
the proposed housing mix. Paragraph 2 of CSR13 sets out the Councils ambition
for affordable housing delivery, at 74% social rent and 26% intermediary.
Notwithstanding this detail, the Government published updated national guidance
on the delivery of First Homes since the DALP examination in public. The
Applicant has offered a proportion of first homes as part of the proposed
affordable housing delivery.

First Homes are a specific kind of discounted market sale housing and should be
considered to meet the definition of ‘affordable housing’ for planning purposes.
First Homes are the government’s preferred discounted market tenure and
should account for at least 25% of all affordable housing units delivered by
developers through planning obligations. First homes are required to fulfill the
following nationally set criteria:

e Must be discounted by a minimum of 30% against the market value
e Sold to persons meeting the first homes eligibility criteria

e On their first sale will have a restriction registered on the Land Registry
title to ensure that other restrictions are passed on at each subsequent
title transfer

e A market price cap of £250,000 is applied

e Purchasers of a First Home should have a combined household income
not exceeding £80,000 in the tax year immediately preceding the year of
purchase

e A purchaser of a First Home should have a mortgage or home purchase
plan to fund a minimum of 50% of the discounted purchase price

In addition to the above nationally set criteria, it is intended for the following
locally set criteria to be applied. The Applicant has agreed to the following locally
set criteria:

e Applicant must be a former British Armed Service Member or ex member
of no longer than 5 years inc. civil partners, spouses, ex spouses/partners

e A Halton resident for a continuous period of not less than 24 consecutive
months.

e A parent/child family with association to Halton resident
e A requirement to living in Halton due to employment as a key worker
e Pastresident who has lived in the Borough for 5 years or more

e A key worker employed in Halton Public Sector for 12 months

13



Page 54

o Key worker employed in health and education and childcare, public safety
and national security

The affordable housing will be delivered in the following terms; First Homes
10No. units (50%), Affordable Rent 5No. Units (25%), Shared Ownership 5No.
Units (25%).

The Applicant has engaged the Council with discussions concerning affordable
housing and has delivered a comprehensive mix of property types and delivery
mechanisms that contribute to the affordable housing need as part of a wider
strategic housing site delivery. First Homes account for at least 25% of all
affordable homes in accordance with national policy with the applicant intending
to provide 50% of the affordable homes for the Government’s preferred
discounted market tenure. The remaining affordable homes would be
approximately equally split between affordable rented and shared ownership /
intermediate. This does not align with the Policy CS(R)13 wording that the
overall number of affordable housing units should be provided as approximately
74% affordable or social rent and 26% intermediate where practicable. However,
it is not considered that the percentage split in the type of affordable housing
units would justify refusal of the planning permission given the overall positive
contribution.

An additional requirement of policy CSR13 concerns affordable housing
integration within the surrounding development to avoid over concentration and
provide seamless design. The Applicant has incorporated the affordable housing
units across the development site, situating affordable units as small clusters
amongst market housing. Whilst the styles of the affordable units are smaller
owing to their smaller designs, they are comprised of a high quality choice of
building materials that will complement the surrounding market housing. The
Applicant has taken steps to ensure suitable interfaces exist between affordable
units and smaller market housing to offer a complementary streetview
appearance.

Affordable housing would be secured by means of suitably worded clauses within
an accompanying S106 agreement. First homes eligibility criteria would also form
part of the S106 wording with a requirement for criteria to be entered into the title
deeds to ensure market discount is retained in perpetuity. The development
proposal will deliver the 20% affordable housing requirement which meets the
broad requirements of planning policy CS(R)13. It is not considered that the
percentage split in the type of affordable housing units would warrant the refusal
of the application.

Design and Appearance

The development proposal is a well-designed housing scheme that comprises a
visually attractive layout with good quality architectural design. The Applicant has
chosen a collection of house types that are well suited to one another and the
application site layout. The appearance is consistent with that seen in the more

14



Page 55

recent housing developments in north Widnes. Whilst this is undoubtedly a
significant change from the undeveloped appearance on site at present, the
proposed development is consistent with that envisaged by the DALP land
allocation. The final appearance will result in a well-designed expansion to the
northerly boundary of the Widnes town suburb. The surrounding housing stock is
of mixed era with no specific form or architectural style that would give rise to the
term ‘local distinctiveness’. Notwithstanding, the Applicant has sought to maintain
the existing natural boundary at the entrance point to the proposed housing
scheme utilizing existing landscape assets. In addition adherence has been
made to the Council’s interface standards, ensuring that existing residents that
border the application site boundary are afforded the privacy requirements set by
policy. The resultant development will present a softened interface with its egress
point onto Derby Rd and creates a developed interface that is sympathetic to its
surroundings.

On this basis the proposal is considered acceptable in respect of its design and
external appearance and is therefore in compliance with Policies CSR18 and
GR1 of the Halton DALP.

Residential Amenity

The Applicant proposes a development that meets the relevant standards for
residential development as set out in the Council’s SPD. The scheme is
comprised of 2-4No. bedroomed houses that are presented across 9
complimentary house types. The Applicant has presented two material pallets for
the majority of house types that will break up the street view appearance into one
of visual interest. Suitable off road parking spaces have been provided in the
form of designated parking, driveways and in the case of detached properties
private garages.

The development of the application site will represent a fundamental change in
its appearance irreparably changing the outlook of surrounding residents.
However, such a view is consistent with the Local Plan land allocation.

The layout of the site has posed a design challenge, the Applicant has adopted
an approach of design to best mitigate this as far as practicable. The line of
properties that bound the rail line have parking to the front, this has created a
large area of hardstanding, the Applicant has addressed this as far as it is
capable of doing without losing residential units by breaking up the development
line and using car park courts where possible. The remainder of the site has
employed a mix of private drives and garages where there has been sufficient
space to accommodate these design features.

Due to the constraint of the application site land holding, the development
proposal does not have a road frontage directly onto Derby Rd. An entrance from
Derby Rd. leads to the first street view of the development. This approach will
lead to the retention of an existing mature landscape boundary feature that will
allow the proposed development to blend more softly in to the Derby Rd frontage.

15



Page 56

appearance and thereby present a sympathetic interface between the
development and its surroundings.

The proposed development layouts adequately address the requirements of the
Design of Residential Development SPD (the SPD) and follows good urban
design principles with complementary plot layouts that ensure good natural
surveillance and convey a pedestrian and community safe sense of place. The
Council has consulted Cheshire Police as part of the applications determination,
a response has been returned raising no issues with regard to designing out
crime. Advice contained within that response can be relayed to the Applicant by
way of informative attached to any planning permission.

Interface distances between proposed plots meet the interface requirements of
the SPD.

There is a single interface of note between plots 14/15/16 and existing properties
37/39/41 St. Wilfreds Road. These interfaces have been measured on plan to be
21m. This measurement accords with the interface requirements of the SPD.
Proposed interface distances within the application site boundary are considered
acceptable.

Paragraph 6.14 of the SPD provides guidance in the calculation of required sizes
for usable minimum private garden spaces for houses, paragraph 6.16 clarify
garden space for flats and apartments as follows:

e Houses having 1-2 bedrooms shall have a minimum private outdoor space of
50sgm per unit

e Houses having 3 bedrooms shall have a minimum private outdoor space of
70sgm per unit

e Houses having 4 or more bedrooms shall have a minimum private outdoor
space of 90sgm per unit

Consideration has been given toward garden sizes within the proposed
residential site. The suggested minimum garden size set by the SPD for
residential properties is met on the majority of the plots. The scheme is however
considered deficient with respect to a number of plots (approximately 17%). Just
because the gardens on some plots could be classed as modest, it does not
follow that unacceptable harm would necessarily be caused to future occupiers.
The gardens would provide sufficient space for sitting out, hanging laundry and
for children to play. The proposed ratio of garden to space per plot would appear
proportionate.

The scheme does make provision for areas of public open space within the
proposed development including an area for equipped play.

With regard to the amenity of the Proposed Developments, it is considered that
the proposals would provide for an appropriate form of development that do not
impact unduly on existing residents and that sufficient regard has been had for
the amenity of future occupiers.

16



Page 57

On this basis the proposals are considered acceptable having regard to Policies
GR1 and GR2 of the Halton DALP.

Open space, Greenspace and Green Infrastructure

Policies RD4, HE4 and HES5 of the Halton DALP set out the Council’s
expectations for the provision of open space and green infrastructure in new
developments. Policy RD4 underlines the importance at para 9.18 of the DALP
where it states:

The provision of greenspace underpins people’s quality of life. The
Council views such provision as being important to individual health and
wellbeing, and to the promotion of sustainable communities.

Paragraph 9.23 of the DALP goes on to say:

The provision of attractive and functional open space has an important
role to play in ensuring a satisfactory housing estate design. It is vital that
it should be considered as an integral element of the overall residential
layout. The type, location and amount of areas of open space must be one
of the starting points in drawing up the design of a new development.
However, it should be noted that not all residential development will create
a need for all types of open space and the type and amount will be guided
by site specific circumstances.

The planning application proposes a modest area of open space that
accommodates an area of equipped play. However, this is considered a shortfall
in open space provision. This shortfall is the direct result of the site constraints,
specifically the shape of the land and its size and the boundary constraints of a
main river and the rail line to the south. DALP Policy RD4 allows for off-site green
space mitigation if on site provision is not feasible. As stated an amount of green
space is provided on site that will serve as an immediate rest bite for residents,
particularly those with young children. In addition each property has an
acceptable garden size that will allow a private outdoor space. Therefore, on site
access to open and green space will be provided to new residents in the form of
private and public spaces.

Policy RD4 ‘Greenspace provision for residential development’, states; all
residential development of 10 or more dwellings that create or exacerbate a
projected quantitative shortfall of greenspace or are not served by existing
accessible greenspace will be expected to make appropriate provision for the
needs arising from the development, having regard to the standards detailed in
table RD4.1 The Halton Open Space Study 2020 (OSS) forms the evidence base
for this policy.

Policy RD4 seeks to ensure that new housing development does not create of
exacerbate shortages of five different types of open space. Demand arising from
new development is assessed by calculating potential population on site and
applying a quantitative standard per person (m2/person) and considering the
quantity and proximity of existing supply within the area.

17



Page 58

The application site lies within Area Forum 3, which is identified as having
deficiencies in the provision of natural and semi-natural open space, provision for
children and young people and allotments. The site has access to existing
provision for all of these typologies within the distances set out in policy RD4.

Whilst the scheme includes provision for some typologies on-site, a deficiency
remains in provision for children and young people and allotments. There
remains a deficiency of natural and semi-natural open space. These shortfalls
are being addressed through the payment of a commuted sum for off-site
provision. The Applicant has agreed to pay a financial contribution to mitigate the
identified shortfall in open space provision. This amount is calculated at
£44,448.18 and forms part of the heads of terms of the S106 agreement that is
proposed. This financial contribution is necessary for the planning application
proposal to comply with DALP policy RD4. Further discussion on this is set out in
the S106 section of the report.

On this basis the proposal is considered acceptable in this regard and in
compliance with Policies RD4, HE4 and HES of the Halton DALP

Ecology

As noted above, the Council’s retained ecology advisor has issued a response of
no objection. This opinion is dependent upon the use of a schedule of
recommended planning conditions and financial obligations that will contribute
toward off site mitigation.

Recreational Pressure

The Proposed Development is located within 5km of the Mersey Estuary SPA
and the Mersey Estuary Ramsar. The Council’s retained ecology advisor has
undertaken a Habitat Regulation Assessment (HRA) that concludes that there
will be no impact on these sites on account of their distance from the application
site boundary. This has been assessed with regard to potential habitat loss or
noise/visual disturbance. Notwithstanding, due to the development sites proximity
to the international sites, recreational pressure has been identified as a likely
significant effect of the proposals. To mitigate for this, the Applicant has agreed
to subscribe to the Halton recreational management Interim approach (HRMIA)
which will be paid at £278.26 per unit. On this basis, it is considered that the
potential impacts as a result of recreational pressure have been addressed. The
Council has notified Natural England of the Applicants commitment regarding the
HRMIA and provided a copy of the undertaken HRA. Natural England have
responded to confirm a position of no objection.

The subscription payment of the interim measure will be secured by a S106
agreement. Further discussion on the terms of the S106 agreement are set out
below.

18



Page 59

Priority Habitats

The development proposal will have an affect on priority habitats resulting in the
loss of hedgerows, wet woodland, traditional orchard and a pond. As a result
DALP policy CSR20 applies.

The proposed plan would result in the loss of the traditional orchard area to the
west of the site, the pond to the east an area of wet woodland adjacent to the
pond and the loss of a native hedgerow which crosses the site as well as a
section of hedgerow for the new site access. The landscaping proposals indicate
new native hedgerow planting will take place as part of the schemes delivery. A
full assessment of this impact is considered in the review set out in the no net
loss and biodiversity net gain section of the report.

Protected/Priority Species

A preliminary ecological appraisal (PEA) has been submitted as part of the
package of ecological data that accompanied the planning application. Great
crested newt (GCN) eDNA surveys have been undertaken for a number of ponds
within 250 metres of the site in 2021. These surveys included the onsite pond
(WO01). The submitted PEA identifies a further 6No. waterbodies within 250
meters of the site boundary, three of which were the subject eDNA surveys in
2021 which were negative. These surveys are still considered to be valid. From
recent aerial photographs one pond (WO05) is no longer present. Pond W11 is a
relatively new SUDs pond located adjacent to W12. Given the negative eDNA
result for pond W12 and the age of pond W11 it is considered unlikely to support
GCN. Survey site W02 is the watercourse on site, which when assessed from
site had a very low water level and does not appear suitable as a breeding site
for GCN. Given the negative eDNA results from ponds in the area the likelihood
of GCN present in the watercourse is considered to be very low.

The PEA identifies a further five ponds in the range 250-500m from the site
boundary. Given the distance, and barriers that bound the site e.g. rail line to
south and A-road to the north these ponds to do not require further consideration.

It is considered that following the above assessment, it is unlikely that great
crested newts are present on site. On that basis the Council’s retained adviser on
ecology matters has advised that the Council does not need to consider the
proposals against the three tests of the Habitats Regulations.

As a precaution, it is advised that the Council adopts a reasonable avoidance
measure condition for the construction phase of the development. This can be
secured by an appropriately worded condition requiring a construction and
environment management plan (CEMP). The habitats on site are suitable for
badger and hedgehog which are protected priority species, therefore DALP
policy CSR20 applies. The CEMP will also detail avoidance measures for
badgers and hedgehogs. In order to maintain habitat connectivity of hedgehogs,
the Council’s advisor has recommended that 13cm x 13cm gaps be installed into
any close board fences on site. This can be secured by a suitably worded
planning condition.

19



Page 60

Bats

The Applicant has submitted an outline bat mitigation strategy. This has been
considered by the Council’s retained ecology advisor. The low conservation
status of the bat roost recorded on site showed a single day roost of a single
soprano pipistrelle bat. The mitigation measures provided are considered to be
acceptable and they provide sufficient information to enable the LPA to complete
the tree test assessment of the Habitats Regulations. A copy of this assessment
is set out in the Council’s ecology advice and is appended in full to this report
(Appendix 1). As the proposal will involve the destruction of a bat roost the
Applicant will require a Natural England European Protected Species license
prior to building on site’. To ensure this is in place, and to ensure that the three
tests are met the following planning conditions are recommended:

That works will not commence unless the local planning authority has been
provided with a copy of a license issued by Natural England pursuant to
Regulation 55 of The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017
authorising the specified development to go ahead or that evidence is provided
that the site has been registered under the bat mitigation class license (CL21);
and that the development shall only be carried out in accordance with all of the
recommendations for mitigation and compensation set out in the Outline Bat
Mitigation Strategy (Biora, 24 March 2023) which details the methods for
maintaining the conservation status of bats, unless otherwise approved in writing
by the local planning authority or varied by a European Protected Species license
subsequently issued by Natural England.

Six trees upon the site were considered to provide low bat roosting potential,
although no bat emergence from these trees was recorded during the bat
surveys. However, as a precaution, it is advised that felling of these trees should
employ soft felling techniques under supervision of a suitably qualified ecologist.
This can be secured by a suitably worded planning condition. Further ecological
protection conditions are recommended including a requirement for a Landscape
Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) and secured through the CEMP by
appropriately worded planning conditions.

As set out in the above assessment, the Applicant has undertaken the relevant
ecological impact studies to support their development proposal. These have
been reviewed by the Council’s advisor who has set out a recommended list of
planning conditions. These have been accepted by the Applicant.

Biodiveristy No Net Loss/ Net Gain

The Applicant’s ecological consultant has submitted a DEFRA Biodiversity Metric
3.1 assessment and a Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) Assessment Report. The
Council’s retained ecology advisor has reviewed this documentation, the
Biodiversity Metric 3.1 assessment is accepted.

The BNG Assessment has found that the proposed development will result in a

20



Page 61

reduction of -9.88 habitat units, a loss of -0.88 hedgerow units and a loss of -0.43
river units. The number of units required to ensure no biodiversity net loss is as
follows, habitat +9.89units, hedgerow +0.89units and river +0.44units.

The applicant has offered to pay a commuted sum figure of £25,000 per credit
unit to the Council on account of the habitats being considered priority habitats.
Applying the outcome of the biodiversity metric identified a need to deliver post
development positive interventions set out above. A financial contribution of
£280,500 is agreed to mitigate the harm caused by the proposed development.
This commuted sum figure is to be secured by a S106 agreement. The payment
will then be used by the Council to undertake habitat creation and enhancement
at one of the Council-owned sites which have been identified as potential
offsetting sites. These sites are due to be surveyed in Spring 2023.

In order to deliver such habitat creation and enhancement, it is necessary for the
Applicant to produce a full and detailed Landscape and Ecological Management
Plan, which covers management of the application site. The detail of which must
ensure that this takes place for a minimum 30 year period. This requirement will
be secured by a suitably worded planning condition to ensure the following is
included. The Plan should include the following:

e Description and evaluation of the features to be managed,;

e Ecological trends and constraints on site which may influence
management;

e Aims and objectives of management;
e Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives;
e Prescriptions for management actions;

e Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan and the
means by which the plan will be rolled forward annually);

e Personnel responsible for implementation of the plan;
e Confirmation of funding and ownership and

e Details of a programme of monitoring and remedial measures triggered by
monitoring.

The wording of the planning condition is agreed by the Applicant. On this basis, it
is considered that the scheme complies with DALP policy CSR20.

Highways

The development proposal has been reviewed by the Council’s highway engineer
on behalf of the Local Highway Authority. Comments provided indicate that the
Development will have an impact on the local highway network pursuant to the
quantum of development sought.

21



Page 62

Bus Accessibility - Consideration has been given to bus access in the vicinity of
the North Widnes developments. Three main services run in the vicinity of the
site, along the Moorfield Road and Derby Road corridors respectively. Two of
those services are within 400m of the site boundary with the majority of units on
site also measured to be within 400m. in terms of the broader bus provision,
frequencies of services into Widnes are limited. It is thought that the lower
frequency is a result of amount of housing in the far north of Widnes along Derby
Road and South Lane. The proposed increase in housing through the delivery of
the SRL7 allocated sites would likely create a greater demand for public transport
in the area. The Applicant has agreed to a scheme whereby a single free bus
pass to each household for a period of 12 months. It is considered that this would
encourage and create an awareness for new residents of the local bus services.
The payment funding for this provision would need to be secured by Section 106
agreement as set out in the legal agreement section. This would likewise allow
the operator an opportunity to monitor usage and demand for future bus service
and frequency reviews.

The Highway Assessment undertaken from the Councils Highway Officer is as
follows:

CONTEXT

The application is one of a number of residential housing proposals being
brought forward as a result of the Land Allocations Delivery Plan’s publication.
Given the scale of the potential for new housing in the north of Widnes it will be
necessary for developers to consider their sites in context with all of the
neighbouring plots in order that a comprehensive assessment of the future
highway circumstances can be best assessed.

CUMULATIVE DEVELOPMENT

Applications 22/00178/FUL & 22/.00179/FUL by Redrow submitted an additional
sensitivity test report with traffic impact assessments which identified that certain
junctions in the proximity to the development would be at or near to capacity in

future year models. These junctions included Derby Road, Lunts Heath Road as
well as Wilmere Lane and the A5080 Cronton Lane junction with Norlands Lane.

The introduction of improved, LTN compliant and high-quality active travel
measures would allow for greater access to sustainable and healthy travel
choices. This would create the space along a traffic heavy corridor with excess of
7000 vehicle movements per day, for people to walk and cycle safely to local
facilities. It also provides the opportunity for a modal shift on shorter journeys to
promote health, well-being and positively contribute to the Liverpool City Regions
ambitions to reduce the dependency on car borne trips.

Mott McDonald were commissioned by the Council to review i-transports
proposals for active travel measures along the northern corridor in Widnes from
the Sixth Form College to the borough boundary on South Lane and down to
Farnworth Village. These measures included segregated cycleways, kerb

22



Page 63

realignments, the raising of junction levels and improved crossing points. In
addition to this, the capacity at junctions for vehicular traffic was also addressed
to allow for more efficient movements of vehicles and mitigate against queuing.
This included kerb realignment and the addition of MOVA to signal operations.

The proposed active travel route will allow for improved pedestrian and cycle
access along Cronton Lane. These measures tie into existing facilities at the
Black Horse roundabout to link to an LTN compliant two-way cycle lane along the
southern side of Lunts Heath Road. From here the route continues onto Derby
Road on its northern side to meet with Redrow’s 3m frontage cycle lane before
extending eastwards to the borough boundary. New crossing points are
proposed at the junction of Cronton Lane close to Norlands Lane and on Lunts
Heath Road to connect the Miller Homes development to public right of way
Widnes No.5 which is a well-used traffic free route to school and local facilities in
Farnworth.

These measures should contribute significantly to an improvement in travel
choices in the north of Widnes whilst aiming to mitigate against the cumulative
effect of residential development in the north of Widnes as well as complimenting
existing active travel schemes currently being delivered.

GENERAL PRINCIPLES OF THE SUBMISSION

It is understood that Cheshire Police support the alteration of the speed limit to
30mph and sightlines drawn to this road speed would be deemed appropriate.

The most recent plan submitted provides details of agreed cycle routes. As
agreed the path adjacent to plot 90 is an intermodal link constructed for
emergency vehicle access. The pathway opposite this which would link into
Redrows adjacent development would be required to be constructed to a width of
3.2m. This is acknowledged to have been agreed with the developer.

OBSERVATIONS OF THE LAYOUT PLAN

The internal roads are designed to be 20mph speed restricted however the
designed length of ‘straight runs’ along the estate roads lends themselves to high
speeds. It is unclear from the plans what is proposed in regard to the traffic
calming identified. It is worth noting that previous experience with raised tables
has led to issues to vehicle overrun onto the footway. We would require traffic
control measures to be included at the junctions of raised tables are to be used
or alternatively traffic calming thumps would likely be more effective. A planning
condition requiring future confirmation of traffic calming measures is
recommended.

Any new or extended areas of hard-standing are required to be constructed of
porous materials or provision made to allow for direct run-off water from a hard
surface to a permeable or porous area or surface within the curtilage of the
dwelling to prevent surface water runoff onto the highway. Additional information
can be found within;
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/qovernment/uploads/system/uploads/atta
chment_data/file/7728/pavingfrontgardens.pdf

23


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/7728/pavingfrontgardens.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/7728/pavingfrontgardens.pdf

Page 64

It is understood and acknowledged as per the application submission that the
vegetation management across the site and that bounding South Lane is to be
under an agreement for reqular maintenance by a management company.

SUMMARY OF REQUIREMENTS

e Traffic calming measures, details recommended to be secured by suitably
worded planning condition;

e Contribution toward off site works as per the cumulative assessment
analysis. Financial contributions toward active travel to be secured by
S106 agreement (details set out in the S106 chapter);

e Provision of cycleway connection not adjacent westerly site (as per plan
submitted) delivery to be secured by suitably worded planning condition;

e Emergency access connection to future site to the east (as per plan
submitted) delivery to be secured by suitably worded planning condition;

e Widening of pathway on South Lane to 3.2m as per agreement, delivery to
be secured by suitably worded planning condition;

The recommended schedule of conditions put forward by the Council’s Highways
Officer have been agreed by the Applicant. Based on the above assessment
which sets out matters to be secured by Section 106 agreement and conditions,
the Highway Officer does not raise any objection to the application
22/00377/FUL. From a highway perspective, the application is considered to be
compliant with Policies CS(R)15, CS(R)18, CS(R)22, C1 and C2 of the DALP.

Drainage and Flood Risk

The applications are supported by a Flood Risk Assessment for each site. This
has been reviewed by the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA). The LLFA have
confirmed as follows:

- The site is described as 3.51ha and is considered to be a greenfield site.

- The proposed development is would comprise residential dwellings that
would classify as more vulnerable to flood risk as defined within Planning
Practice Guidance.

- A Flood Risk assessment and Drainage strategy has been prepared in
support of the application ref. OTH_Flood Risk and Drainage
Assessment.pdf

- The site has also been assessed as part of the Halton Level 2 Strategic
Flood risk assessment. Information from this document does not appear to
have been reviewed by the applicant as part of their application.

The LLFAs comments on the Flood Risk Assessment are:

- Fluvial flood risk

24


https://www3.halton.gov.uk/Documents/planning/planning%20policy/evidencebase/natural/SFRAW11.pdf
https://www3.halton.gov.uk/Documents/planning/planning%20policy/evidencebase/natural/SFRAW11.pdf

Page 65

o The proposed development includes residential property which is

appropriate within Flood Zone 1 subject to the need to avoid flood
risk from sources other than main rivers and the sea.

Whilst the site is located within flood zone 1, the assessment does
not acknowledge that the watercourse is unlikely to have been
modelled by the Environment Agency at this location due fto its
small upstream catchment.

The Applicant has supported the application through a hydraulic
modelling study. This indicates a small flow path of flood waters
across the north of the site, with maximum depths in the 0.1% AEP
event of 0.1 to 0.3mm above ground level. Therefore the LLFA
would recommend a condition to set the finished floor levels in the
area of flood risk to be a minimum of whichever is higher of 300mm
above the:

= average ground level of the site
= adjacent road level to the building
= estimated river or sea flood level

In summary, the assessment of fluvial flood risk is considered to be
adequate. It is recommended that the applicant continues to consult
with the Environment Agency regarding permits for the proposed
culvert crossing.

Surface water flood risk
o The flood risk assessment adequately considers the potential for

risk from this source would be low.

Groundwater
o The flood risk assessment adequately considers the potential for

risk from this source would be low.

Flooding from artificial sources.
o The LLFA is satisfied that the risk from sewers, canals and

reservoirs would be low

Drainage strategy

25

Runoff rates
o Pre-development Runoff rates have been calculated for the 1 year,

30 year and 100 year storm events as well as for the Qbar event.
Modelling of the drainage system appears to indicate that runoff
would be effectively restricted to 17.6 I/s (Qbar rates) during all
events up to the 1% AEP +45% AEP rainfall event.

Drainage performance
o Micro drainage outputs identify that no flooding at the surface would



Page 66

occur during the 3.3% AEP event including a climate change and
1% AEP +45% rainfall event. Therefore the proposed system
appears to have an appropriate design standard.

- Discharge location

o Itis noted that infiltration testing has not been undertaken.
However, the LLFA notes that high ground water levels have been
recorded and that infiltration is unlikely to be feasible. Therefore, it
IS accepted that discharge into the watercourse is the most
sustainable viable option.

- Assessment of SuDS

o The strategy proposes to attenuated flows using a series of below
ground attenuation tanks. Which have been placed to
accommodate the areas of highest flood risk and Brook location

- Maintenance and management

o Information would be required to be provided relating to how the
proposed system would be maintained and who would be
responsible for this once the system is in place.

In summary the LLFA advise that the proposed development is considered to be
suitable in terms of flood risk and that the applicant has demonstrated that the
development would use sustainable drainage and generally suitable design
criteria have been proposed. Conditions have been requested to provide
additional details concerning existing and proposed ground levels of the site,
road levels, estimated river or sea flood level. In addition a post development
SUDS verification report is required confirming the SUDS system has been
constructed in accordance with the approved design.

Subject to the attachment of the recommended conditions, the development
proposal is considered to comply with DALP Policies, with particular regard to
HEO9.

Contaminated Land

As part of a package of supporting documentation, the Applicant has submitted a
ground investigation report. This has been reviewed by the Council’s
contaminated land officer, the following observations from whom are of note.

The site has been in agricultural use for as long as the records studied show,
with the development of two farms on the site. Other site history of note is the
infilling of several ponds. The site investigation was designed to give good
coverage of the site and to target specific features (infilled ponds). Soil and
ground gases were sampled and analysed.

26



Page 67

The site investigation and subsequent risk assessment identified a number of
issues for the site. Made ground, primarily located around the former farm in the
northern part of the site and associated with the infilled ponds, exhibited elevated
concentrations of the number of soil contaminants. Asbestos fibres and asbestos
containing materials were also identified in a number of locations within the made
ground — patrticularly within the infilled ponds. A simple cover system (600mm of
verified soil) for garden and landscaped areas in the location of made ground
deposits is recommended.

Ground gas monitoring and risk assessment was complicated by high
groundwater levels, which produced unreliable gas flow measurements.
However, the extended monitoring period combined with a lines of evidence
approach led to a sound risk assessment. The majority of the site is low risk with
the possibility of remedial measures required in the location of the former ponds.
A number of options for the management/removal of this risk are presented.

The report acknowledges that there were some limitations to the investigation as
at the time a number of the on site properties were occupied, limiting access to
those areas of the site. | am in agreement with the findings of the submitted
reporting and therefore do not object to the proposals. However, there are a
number of additional elements that need to be undertaken by the applicant,
submitted and agreed. These include the additional site investigation of the
previously inaccessible areas, a remedial strategy that covers the soils and
ground gas risks identified (this may include further gas monitoring). A
verification report will be required upon completion of the agreed remedial
actions.

The above can be secured by a suitably worded planning condition. On this basis
the Contaminated Land Officer raises no objections. It is considered that the
Proposed Development complies with DALP Policy HES8. A further condition
requiring verification that any recommended remediation has been implemented
has also been recommended.

Noise

The applications are each supported by a Noise Impact Assessment. These have
been reviewed by the Councils’ EHO who has provided the following opinion.

The applicant has submitted an acoustic report reference 102805, dated
1/06/2022 in support of the application. The impact of existing sources of noise
that may affect the development site are assessed in order to ensure the that
sound levels specified in BS 8233:2014 Guidance on Sound Reduction for
Buildings can be achieved at all properties within the development site, in
addition to the maximum sound level of 55dB for external amenity spaces as
specified by the World Health Organisation. This is an agreed assessment
methodology.

To the south the site is affected by railway traffic from the Liverpool to
Manchester Railway line, as well as road traffic noise from South Lane. As such

27



Page 68

a scheme of mitigation is proposed to ensure that the both the internal and
external sound levels are met.

This report and its conclusions are accepted.

We would also wish to ensure the hours of work are appropriately controlled on
this development site.

In conclusion the Applicant has submitted a noise impact assessment in support
of its planning applications. The findings have been reviewed and accepted by
the Council’s Environmental Health Officer. The noise impact measures will be
secured by a suitably worded planning condition It is considered that the
Applicant has complied with planning policy H7 of the Halton DALP.

Air Quality

The applicant has submitted an Air Quality Assessment to each of the planning
applications. These have been assessed by the Council’'s EHO who have
provided the following comments.

The applicant has submitted an Air Quality Assessment reference 102805, dated
06/06/2022 in support of the application. The potential for off-site impacts from
dust emissions during the construction phase of the development has been
assessed, in accordance with The Institute of Air Quality Management Guidance
on the Assessment of Dust form Demolition and Construction.

The report identifies that with appropriate mitigation in place, impact on human
health as a result of the construction phase is not significant.

The Air Quality Assessment goes on to consider the increase in Annual Average
Daily Traffic from the site once operational, and whether this increase is
significant in terms of air quality, based on criteria taken from Land-Use Planning
& Development Control: Planning for Air Quality produced by Environmental
Protection UK and The Institute of Air Quality.

The report identifies that that the impact of increased traffic flow on local air
quality is not significant

The methodologies used in this report and its conclusions are accepted.

To conclude, the Applicant has submitted an air quality assessment to support
the application. The scope of the document and the recommendations have been

reviewed and accepted by the Council’'s Environmental Health Officer. The
development is considered to comply with DALP policy HE7.

Mineral Safequarding

Policy HE10 of the Halton DALP sets out the Council’s policy position regarding
the protection of mineral safeguarding areas from sterilisation by other forms of
development. A requirement of the policy is to give consideration that the mineral

28



Page 69

extraction can continue to be extracted without unacceptable community impact.

As part of the planning application, the Council has consulted the Environmental
Health Officer. They confirmed that having reviewed the distance of the
application boundary from the quarry site there was no risk of noise causing
nuisance to the domestic enjoyment of the proposed dwellings. The greatest
impact on the proposed dwellings from a noise perspective would be generated
from the surrounding highway network and rail line. With regard to potential
nuisance from dust, the Environmental Health Officer has considered potential
impacts. No concern was raised due the adequate distance between the
respective site boundaries. It is of note that the application site does not bound
Bold Heath Quarry, and there is a mature landscape bounded highway between
the Quarry and the application site.

In view of the above consideration, there are no concerns relating to mineral
safeguarding that would give justification to the refusal of the proposed schemes.

Mineral Area of Search

The planning application site is designated as a minerals area of search by the
DALP proposals map, therefore DALP policy HE20 applies to this consideration.

Para 2 of this policy states, Planning permission for other development that
would result in the direct or indirect sterilisation of the identified mineral
resources in a defined MSA will not be permitted unless: a. it is demonstrated by
way of a minerals assessment (MA) that the resource is not of economic value;
or b. the mineral can be extracted without unacceptable community or
environmental impacts prior to the development taking place;

The Applicant has undertaken a mineral assessment in support of the planning
application. This document puts forward an assessment of the geology of the
immediate area. Mineral resources have been identified as superficial till deposits
comprising of deposits from glacial clay with minor granular units and a bedrock
of Chester sandstone formation. The glacial clay deposit is located above the
mineral and is estimated to be 10m in depth across most of the development
sites. In addition it is likely that the geology of interest only partially covers the
proposed site and given its greater depth than the sub alluvial gravel, the
supporting documentation concludes that the mineral is not economically viable
as an extractable resource.

Previously considered schemes that neighbor this planning application site were
accompanied by a more detailed assessment of the same resource. Those
reports noted that to exploit the land would result in a deep depression and a
stockpile of removed material for future remediation. Such an activity would likely
remove any future development opportunity of the application sites due to a
restored land being comprised of made ground. Development upon made ground
adds an additional burden of cost to overcome the constraint from a built
engineering perspective.

It is accepted that the mineral resource in the area of search as shown on the
29



Page 70

DALP Allocations Map is not viable. On this basis it is considered that the
planning applications comply with planning policy HE10.

Archaeology

As noted above the Council’s retained advisor in these fields has considered the
heritage assessment that accompanied the planning application and raised no
objection. The following comments are of note.

The archaeological considerations for this proposed development include the
buildings associated with both Boundary Farm and Abbey Farm, both of which
appear on the first edition OS map (1881) of the area, the proposed development
seeks to demolish these structures. A programme of archaeological survey
should be undertaken prior to the demolition to generate a permanent record of
these structures and any historical materials therein.

There is also a township boundary which runs through the centre of the site,
which will be significantly impacted by the proposed development. The township
boundary runs along the stream to the south of Boundary Farm and north of
Abbey Farm. This township boundary may hold archaeological deposits relating
to the early uses of the landscape in this area, or potentially prehistoric materials
as noted and outlined within the supplied Heritage Assessment.

Given the archaeological considerations outlined above, it would be
recommended that a programme of archaeological mitigation is undertaken in
order to identify and record any below ground remains present within the
proposed development area.

The programme of archaeological mitigation may be as follows:

e Level Il Building Survey for the structures at Boundary Farm and Abbey
Farm prior to the demolition

e Developer funded watching brief during the clearing of the structures
following the demolition, and during excavations for foundations and
services

e Targeted excavation along the township boundary during key aspects of
the development, such as the removal of topsoil’s, excavations for
foundations and services.

The above programme of archaeological mitigation may be secured by condition,
a recommended wording for this is offered below:

No development shall take place within the area indicated until the
applicant, or their agents or successors in title, has secured the
implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with
a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the
applicant and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The work
shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved scheme.

The Applicant has provided sufficient information to consider the archaeological
value of heritage assets that may exist on site. The Council’s advisor in this field

30



Page 71

has recommended a program of mitigation that will be secured by way of a
planning condition in the terms set out in the above advice. The Applicant has
agreed to this condition. It is considered that the development proposal complies
with DALP Policy HE2.

Impact on Local Services

A key feature in the responses received to the public consultation exercise has
centered on the concerns regarding this development and the impact it will have
on local services, specifically education places in primary and secondary
schools, health services regarding GP surgery places and dentists.

EDUCATION - The Local Education Authority have stated that there is sufficient
capacity within the Halton Borough in terms of primary and secondary school
provision based on existing population levels. In addition it should also be noted
that latest population projections do not predict significant increases in the
number of school age residents over the Plan period to 2037. On this basis there
is no anticipated shortfall in this provision as a result of the DALP site allocations.
Therefore, no financial contribution is sought toward a pooled fund to increase
existing capacity.

HEALTH SERVICES - No request for additional funding finance has been
received from any public body as a result of this application or in response to the
Council’s allocation of residential sites by the DALP. The concerns raised in
response to the public consultation exercise relate to existing service levels, such
objections are based on an existing situation albeit one that additional
households borne from the development would marginally worsen.
Notwithstanding, no policy justification or scheme exists to justify mitigation or
financial contributions in this regard and it is not considered sufficient reason for
refusing a grant of planning permission for residential development on a strategic
housing site.

Police - Matters relating to impact on Policing services are covered later in the
report.

Sustainable development and climate change

Policy CSR19 of the DALP requires all new development to be sustainable and
be designed to have regard to the predicted effects of climate change. The policy
recommends that developers consider national guidance to ensure development
is sustainable and appropriate to the location.

Policy GR1 states all major development proposals must demonstrate how
sustainable design and construction methods will be incorporated to achieve
efficiency and resilience to climate change in accordance with CSR19 taking into
account the site specific viability of the development where appropriate.

DALP policies CSR24 and GR5 encourage suitable construction practices
including the incorporation of low carbon energy into new developments to

31



Page 72

address carbon emissions arising from housing.

The residential development subject of this planning application will be built
according to the new Part L building regulation standards. This is equal to a 31%
reduction over the previous outgoing build standards. In addition upgrades will be
made in order of the Governments energy hierarchy that sets an aspiration to
use less energy compared to the baseline set of Part L. The differences are set
out in the table below.

Element Type Part L 2021 Maximum U-value Prospect Homes Build Specification U-value
W/(m?K) W/[(m?K)

All roof types 0.16 0.10

Wall 0.26 0.16

Floor 0.18 0.14

Party wall 0.20 0.00

Window 1.6 1.20

Doors (including glazed 16 1.60

doors

The Applicant at this time has opted to use gas boilers as a means of generating
heat within the proposed residential units but will be looking at wastewater heat
recovery.in addition it is expected that all plots will have some level of PV array
installed. The Applicant will also install EV charging.

These measures are above that of fabric first approach detailing positive
interventions in line with DALP policy CS(R)19 and GR5. The Applicant has
confirmed that the first 60 plots to be built on the application site will be
constructed using these measures. The balance of 39 remaining dwellings are
expected to be constructed after 2025, at which date the Applicant has forecast
to roll out the installation of air source heat pumps. This additional measure will
result in a 70% emission reduction.

The Council’s retained adviser has confirmed that the Applicants approach is
sufficient to meet the requirements set out in Local Plan policy CS(R)19
Sustainable Development and Climate Change. Policy CS(R)19 seeks to
encourage new development to incorporate current best practice in sustainable
design and construction. It is therefore considered reasonable to attach a
condition requiring the Applicant to submit these details formerly and that they
are implemented on site as part of the proposed developments delivery. This will
ensure compliance with Policy CS(R) 19.

Waste.

The proposal involves construction activities and policy WM8 and WM9 of the
Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local Plan (WLP) applies. This policy
requires the minimisation of waste production and implementation of measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, including designing out waste. In accordance
with policy WM8, evidence through a waste audit or a similar mechanism (e.g.
site waste management plan) demonstrating how this will be achieved must be

32



Page 73

submitted and can be secured by a suitably worded planning condition.

Sufficient land exists within the site to deal with domestic on site waste and
recycling measures in order to comply with planning policy WM9.

Legal Agreement

This section of the report will consider the areas of financial contribution identified
and discussed in the report and their weighing of importance having had full
regard to the individual matters and the strategic importance of underlying policy
justification.

Cheshire Police — As part of the Consultation on this application Cheshire police
have raised the impact of the development on the demands it will place on
Cheshire Constabulary. The police have therefore requested a contribution to the
provision towards the provision of police infrastructure by way of S106
contribution to mitigate the impacts of the development. The Police have stated
that this payment would go towards Staff set up costs, Police vehicles and
premises. Full details of this request has been sent to members directly.

The cost breakdown presented by the Police is as follows:

S106

This section of the report will consider the areas of financial contribution identified
and discussed in the report and their weighing of importance having had full
regard to the individual matters and the strategic importance of underlying policy
justification.

Cheshire Police — A financial contribution of £24,651.42 is sought to mitigate its
impact on Cheshire Constabulary infrastructure. Cheshire Police state that their
organization does not have the capacity to meet the additional demands the
proposed developments will place upon it. The cost breakdown presented by the
Police is as follows:

Infrastructure req. Area Total Cost

Staff set up Widnes and Runcorn £3,444 44

Vehicles Widnes and Runcorn £2472.42
LPUs

Premises Widnes LPU £18,734.56

Total £24,651.42

In order for contributions to be acceptable it must pass tests in the Community
Infrastructure Levy

122(2) of the Community Infrastructure Levy ('CIL") Regulations 2010 sets out

33




Page 74

that obligations must be:

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
(b) directly related to the development; and

(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.”

The body of evidence set out by the police, establishes only that a contribution
towards policing costs could be considered lawful in some circumstances.

It is considered that the requested contributions are not demonstrated to be
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms.

The fundamental principle behind an obligation being necessary to make
something acceptable in planning terms is whether the obligation relates to a
harm which a development must mitigate to be compliant with the Development
Plan. Notwithstanding the strength of any argument, the Police puts forward for
additional funding, if that funding is not justified by policy, it cannot be secured
through planning obligation.

The DALP includes a number of policies for the delivery of specific infrastructure
but does not include any provision for policing facilities. DALP Policy CS(R)7
does make an allowance for the provision of infrastructure more generally (Part
2):

“2. Where new development creates or exacerbates deficiencies in infrastructure
it will be required to ensure those deficiencies or losses are compensated for,
adequately mitigated or substituted for in a timely manner. On larger
developments that will be completed in phases or over a number of years, an
agreed delivery schedule of infrastructure works may be appropriate. Where
infrastructure provision is not made directly by the developer, contributions may
be secured by an agreement under Section106 of the Act including where
appropriate via a phased payment schedule”.

The policy itself requires new development to compensate for, adequately
mitigate or substitute deficiencies in infrastructure where it creates or
exacerbates that deficiency. The policy itself doesn’t define what infrastructure
can be included, but 7.72 of the Local Plan state that the DALP development
proposals will be supported by an “appropriate level of infrastructure” which
includes:

“ transport infrastructure such as roads, railways, public transport, and cycling
and walking routes;

- physical and environmental infrastructure such as water supply and treatment,
flood defence infrastructure, and energy supply;

- green infrastructure such as public greenspaces;

- social infrastructure including community services and facilities; and,

- digital infrastructure such as internet access”.
Paragraph 7.76 crucially sets out that “Alongside the infrastructure requirements

34



Page 75

for the DALP, the Infrastructure Plan details the infrastructure needed to support
general growth across the Borough. Infrastructure needs will evolve over the plan
period and as such it will be necessary to undertake further reviews of the
Infrastructure Plan. The Infrastructure Plan will be a ‘live’ document which will be
updated as required over the lifetime of the Core Strategy saved policies, the
Delivery and Allocations Plan and as new local plan documents emerge,
infrastructure schemes are completed and in accordance with discussions with
infrastructure / service providers to further review the need for infrastructure
within the Borough.”

The Halton Infrastructure Plan 2019 set out in Chapter 26 how policing
infrastructure requirements have been considered by the Plan and notes the
potential of increased development to add to the requirement for resources in
policing. It notes that development schemes therefore have the capacity to
increase the demand for police and partnership resources and this can impact
upon capital investment (new Police facilities) and the revenue costs of additional
Police officers and police staff. It sets out that it is therefore reasonable that
policing and community safety needs be taken into account by Halton Borough
Council and developers when determining planning applications relating to the
new development.

At 26.4 of the IDP it states

“The demands on police and community safety resources manifest themselves in
a variety of forms dependent on the scale and nature of the proposed
development, including:

» The need to acquire land and the capital costs of Police buildings

* Associated facilities for the provision of new Police stations or Police
information points

* Provision of new vehicles

* Additional staff resources, including Police Community Support Officers,
Environmental Council staff, Anti-Social Behaviour officers etc.

 Extension of existing communication infrastructure e.g. radios, CCTV
shopwatch

» Crime reduction measures in line with ‘Secured by Design’ principles”

At paragraph 26.13 of the IDP, it states “Halton Borough Council will continue to
work collaboratively with the Cheshire Police Authority, Cheshire Fire and
Rescue Service and the North West Ambulance Service to ensure their needs
are given consideration in subsequent planning policy documents”

With regard to the above, it is clear that infrastructure for policing is capable of
being required, by the Council, to satisfy the provisions of Policy CS(R)7. The
items which funding has been requested for by the Police fall broadly within the
items that the Council envisaged in its IDP2019. We do not dispute that position
taken by the Police.

35



Page 76

However, what is clear is that it is for the Council to determine whether there is
an appropriate level of infrastructure in place currently and subsequently whether
contributions or mitigation is necessary. The Council’s point of reference for that
must be the IDP. The IDP, in this case, has already considered the case that the
Police have put forward (in consultation with the Police) and considered that
further work is required (with the Police), to be included in future policy
documents, before infrastructure requirements can be justified. It is not for the
Police to unilaterally seek to determine what level of funds it requires from new
development. The DALP and its evidence base make this clear. The DALP
(supported by its evidence base) is clearly the starting point for decision making.

With regard to the above, the Council do not consider that an obligation was
necessary to make the scheme acceptable in planning terms, we do not consider
that the evidence provided by the Police sufficiently demonstrates that the
contributions are fairly and reasonably related to the development .

The Police evidence sets out that the link between Police funding and population
growth is not a simple one but notes that an increase in population in an area
does not lead to an overall increase in central government grant.

However, the evidence then goes on to make a very simple calculation for
justifying its requests based on a population per Police person calculation. The
response fails to take any account of the increase in revenue which will be
generated by the proposed development in Council tax precept. Whilst we must
take on face value that grant funding doesn’t necessarily increase with
population, there is no further information to justify how grant funding is
distributed so that any calculation can be made on what the likely impact of the
development is.

The Police evidence states that in October 2019, the Home Office confirmed that
the Constabulary will receive funding to recruit an additional 240 officers by the
end of 2024, however, that this was purely meant to address the reductions in
officer numbers in preceding years caused by austerity. The Police state that this
funding is therefore earmarked to ensure existing settlements and communities
receive an acceptable level of policing service, rather than provision in response
to proposed development growth. Whilst that may be the case, it is impossible to
justify from the Police’s evidence, what the previous impact of austerity (and
therefore current budgets) have had on the deficiencies within the Police budget.
It is not for the planning system to charge developers to fund existing deficiencies
in services.

Cheshire Police have put forward a justification that funding is sought to address
the uplift in population brought on as a result of the development. This assumes
that 100% of the proposed new developments population will come from outside
the Borough. Whilst an element of in migration is accepted as likely to take place
at either the level of Borough boundary and the Cheshire Police administration
boundary, it is not accepted by the Council that this will amount to 100% of any
new residential development. By way of example, the 2011 Census data shows
that 9326 people responded to state that they resided at a different address the

36



Page 77

year before 83% of which had moved from an address elsewhere in Cheshire.
Whilst those individuals had moved from one local authority to another, they had
remained within the Cheshire Police administrative boundary.

It is evident from the above, and from a review of the Police’s evidence, that the
factors which should be considered in trying to understand the potential impact of
new development on policing are indeed varied and complex. It is not possible
from the information submitted to robustly demonstrate that the contribution
requested by the police is fairly and reasonable related to the development.

In terms of contributions these need to be properly undertaken and tested. It is
not possible for the Council to consider how reasonably the contributions would
relate to development; that includes their impact on viability of providing an
otherwise compliant level of obligations (including affordable housing provision)
in the Borough. The contributions towards policing has not been considered
within the Council’s Whole Plan Viability Assessment.

Distribution of spend

This report has set out a number of planning considerations that following an
examination of planning policy have resulted in the Applicant agreeing to a
package of off site commuted sum payments in order to comply with the DALP.
The following table sets out the value of contributions sought from the
development in order to mitigate harm.

Description Of Iltem Values Appropriated

Recreational Pressure £27,547.74

BNG £280,500

Active Travel £264,118.14

Bus subsidies provided a 12 month buss pass per

household

Open Space £44.448.18
I

Total (minus cost of bus pass) £616,614.06

Discussions with the Applicant have resulted in a spending allowance of
£616,614.06. The Applicant asserts that a greater allowance would make the
scheme unviable. No viability report has been submitted. The Council has not
requested a viability report as the Applicant is still providing 20% affordable
housing in line with DALP policy CSR13.

As set out in the table above, the Applicant has agreed a maximum £616,614.06
off site cumulative contribution. The table sets out a breakdown of the spending
allocation based on the areas of consideration set out in the report above. The

37



Page 78

Applicant has agreed to pay recreational pressure compensation and biodiversity
net gain is paid in full. This will ensure that the scheme complies with national
and local planning policies with regard to ecology and nature conservation as set
out in the ecology section of the report.

An off site contribution of £44,448.18 has been agreed by the Applicant
concerning the on site provision of open space. The open space shown as part of
the proposed layout is considered deficient within the terms of DALP policy RD4.
However, the policy makes allowance for off-site provision as part of policy its
wording. The combination of the agreed contribution and the quantum of open
space as shown on the proposed layout plan is considered sufficient to comply
with the requirements of planning policy RD4.

The Council has designed an active travel design to for north Widnes. This
scheme is designed to address the impacts borne from the land allocations of
SRL7 of DALP policy RD1. Therefore it is imperative that the scheme be funded
sufficiently from schemes developed on these sites. The Applicant has agreed a
contribution of £264,118.14 to this scheme.

With regard to public transport, there is an existing bus route with a bus stop on
the application boundary. The Applicant has agreed to fund a 12-month bus pass
per household. This is sufficient to ensure compliance with DALP policy CSR15.

The S106 funds have been allocated having full regard to planning policy. They
will ensure that the scheme is delivered in a sustainable manner and that any
harms are sufficiently mitigated.

Planning Balance and Conclusion

Whilst there is an element of non-compliance detailed in relation to housing and
affordable housing tenure mix, this is not considered to be contrary to the
development plan as a whole.

Based on the above assessment and subject to the proposed to be issued with a
planning approval conditions and legal agreement provisions, the proposal is
deemed acceptable. The proposed development would provide residential
development on an allocated housing site in a sustainable location, contributing
to housing need in the Borough and delivery of high quality development and on
site open space provision.

When assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole, taking into
account the details of the scheme and any material planning considerations, the
proposal is thus sustainable development for which the NPPF carries a
presumption in favour.

As such, the proposal is considered to accord with the Development Plan and
national policy in the NPPF.

38



Page 79

RECOMMENDATION

Approval subject to the following:

a) S106 agreement that secures the terms set out at in the Legal Agreement
section of this report.

b) Schedule of conditions set out below

c) That if the S106 agreement is not signed within a reasonable period of
time, authority given to refuse this planning application.

Recommended conditions as follows:

CONDITIONS

Time Limit — Full Permission.

Approved Plans

Contaminated Land identification and remediation strategy

Contaminated Land validation report

External Facing Materials

Structural details of all retaining walls within 4m of a highway

Boundary

EV charge parking spaces to be detailed

Construction management plan including avoidance measures re habitat/

mammal/ bird nesting/ amphibians

10. Construction waste audit

11.Hedgehog highway network measures

12.Lighting scheme to limit impact on nocturnal species along Bridgewater
Canal

13. Ecological protection strategy

14.Replacement of existing hedgerow

15. Ecological habitat management plan

16.Bird and bat boxes details

17.Domestic refuse storage details

18. Suds verification report

19.Removal of GPDO Schedule 2, Part 1, Class F — no fences forward of
front elevation.

20. Standard 3-year permission

21.Approved Plans

22.Construction Environment Management Plan

23.LLFA — Details

24.LLFA — validation report

25. Prior to development a noise impact assessment

26. Contaminated Land investigation and remediation

27.Contaminated Land validation report

©CoNoOOR~WND =

39



Page 80

28.Contaminated land unsuspected contamination
29.Landscape management plan
30. Archaeology

BACKGROUND PAPERS

The submitted planning applications are background papers to the report. Other
background papers specifically mentioned and listed within the report are open to
inspection at the Council’s premises at Municipal Building, Kingsway, Widnes,
WAS8 7QF in accordance with Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

As required by:
e The National Planning Policy Framework (2021);

e The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(England) Order 2015; and

e The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Amendment)
(England) Regulations 2015.

This statement confirms that the local planning authority has worked proactively
with the applicant to secure developments that improve the economic, social and
environmental conditions of Halton.

40



Appendix 1.
13t April 2023

Page 81

— Advice provided by the Council’s retained ecology advisor dated

Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service
The Barn, Court Hey Park,

Roby Road, Huyton, L16 3NA

Director: Alan Jemmett, PhD, MBA

Enquiries:

Contact:

Email:

0151 934 4951

Peter McKeon
measdcconsultations@eas sefton.gov.uk

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT ADVICE

Ta:

Andrew Evans

Organisation:  Halton Council

From:

Your Ref: 22/00377/FUL
Peter McKeon File Ref: HAZ22-035
Principal Ecologist Date: 13 Aprl 2023

Proposed demolition of existing buildings and the erection of residential

development (Use Class C3) with associated landscaping, access/egress, car
parking, drainage, and other necessary supporting infrastructure at Land At South

Lane, Widnes, Cheshire
Additional Information - Bat Mitigation Measures

1. Thank you for consulting Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service in respect of this
planning application. The proposals comprise the above planning description.

2. Having reviewed the application and supporting documentation, our advice is set out
below in two parts.

Part One deals with issues of regulatory compliance, action required prior to
determination and matters to be dealt with through planning conditions. Advice
is only included here where action is required or where a positive statement of
compliance is necessary for statutory purposes.

Should the Council decide to adopt an alternative approach to MEAS Part 1
advice, | request that you let us know. MEAS may be able to provide further
advice on options to manage risks in the determination of the application.

Part Two sets out guidance to facilitate the implementation of Part One advice
and informative noftes.

Appendix 1 provides the detailed reasoning in respect of the conclusions
presented in Part One regarding Habitats Regulations Assessment (three tests).

In this case Part One comprises paragraphs 3 to 6, whilst there is no Part Two.

Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service — delivering high quality environmental advice and sustainable

41

solufions to the Disfricts of Halfon, Knowsley, Liverpool, 5i.Helens, Sefton and Wimral

AV Megy,
o - ‘é'
o
- :‘.‘
Crapd

LU



42

Page 82

Part One

3. Following previous MEAS advice of 30 January 2023, the applicant has submitted an
Outline Bat Mitigation Strategy (Biora, 24 March 2023). Considering the low
conservation status of the bat roost recorded upon the site (i.e. a day roost of a single
soprano pipistrelle bat), the mitigation measures provided are considered to be
acceptable and they provide sufficient information to enable the LPA to complete the
three test assessment (Habitats Regulations).

4.  The three test assessment has been completed and can be found in Appendix 1 below.
By including the assessment within the Planning Committee / Delegated Powers
report shows how the Council has engaged with the Habitats Directive.

5. As the proposals involve the destruction of a bat roost, the applicant will require a
MNatural England European Protected Species licence prior to any works commencing
on building B12. To ensure this is in place the following planning condition is required:

CONDITION

Works will not commence unless the local planning authority has been provided
with a copy of a licence issued by Natural England pursuant to Regulation 55 of
The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 authorising the
specified development to go ahead or that evidence is provided that the site has
been registered under the bat mitigation class licence (CL21).

6. To ensure that the mitigation is undertaken and that the three tests are met, | advise
that the following planning condition is required:

CONDITION

The development shall only be carried out in accordance with all of the
recommendations for mitigation and compensation set out in the Outline Bat Mitigation
Strategy (Biora, 24 March 2023) which details the methods for maintaining the
conservation status of bats, unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning
authority or varied by a European Protected Species licence subsequently issued by
Matural England.

| would be pleased to discuss these issues further and to provide additional information in
respect of any of the matters raised.

Peter McKeon MCIEEM
Principal Ecologist

Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service - delivering high quality environmental advice and sustainable
solutions to the Districis of Halton, Knowsley, Liverpool, 5t Helens, Seffon and Wimral
At Rig,,

),;\ A
- h
d""l.!“'

iy,



43

Page 83

Appendix 1: Three-Test Assessment for European Protected Species

The three tests are set out in Regulation 55 of the Habitats Regulations 2017. The three
test assessment of the proposals is set out below. Mational Planning Policy Guidance
applies’.

This three-test assessment has been undertaken by a MEAS suitably qualified ecologist.
Set out below is our advice to the Local Planning Authority (LPA) case officer in relation to
the proposed development and whether Tests 1 to 3 are satisfied. Tests 1 and 2 are
social, economic, and planning tests, therefore we recommend the case officer draws
upon on wider information with regard to evidencing of whether Tests 1 and 2 are satisfied

as necessary in determining this application.

Test 1: Regulation 55(1)(e). “preserving public health or public safety or other imperative
reasons of overriding public interest including those of a social or economic nature and
beneficial consequences of primary importance for the environment”

The proposed development will contribute towards housing targets as set out in Policy
CS(R)3 of the Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan. The proposed construction works
will provide employment that will benefit the local economy. This test has been satisfied.

Test 2: Regulation 55(9)(a): “that there is no satisfactory alfernative”

The site has been allocated for housing in the Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan.
Removal of the building with the bat roost present (B12), is required to enable the
development to provide the required number of dwellings. This test has been met.

Test 3: Regulation 55(9)(b): “that the action authorised will not be detrimental to the
maintenance of the population of the species concerned at a favourable conservation status
in their natural range”

In our view, if the mitigation measures outlined in the submitted Outline Bat Mitigation
Strategy (Biora, 24 March 2023) are implemented in full, then this test would be satisfied.

1 Protected species and development: advice for local planning authorities - GOV. UK (www.gov.uk)

Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service = delivering high quality environmental advice and sustainable
sofutions to the Districis of Halfon, Knowsiley, Liverpool, St.Helens, Sefton and Wirral



Page 84 Agenda Item 3c

APPLICATION NO: 22/00602/COU

LOCATION: Bridge View Sports Bar 78 High Street
Runcorn Cheshire WA7 1JH

PROPOSAL.: Proposed change of use from Bar/Bed and
Breakfast to a 17-bedroom house in multiple
occupation, including external alterations

WARD: Mersey and Weston

PARISH: None

APPLICANT: Mr Sunder Kripalani, Penn Investments
Limited, Suite 11, Boundary House , Boston
Road, London , W7 2QE

AGENT: Mr James O Rourke, O'Rourke-Designs

9 Swansea Close, Liverpool, L19 2HF

DEVELOPMENT PLAN:

Halton Delivery and Allocations
Local Plan (2022)

Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste
Local Plan (2013)

ALLOCATIONS:

The site is allocated as a Community Facility
within the developed area to the West of
Runcorn Old Town Centre.

DEPARTURE No.

REPRESENTATIONS: 4 contributors have made representations
from the publicity given to the application.

KEY ISSUES: Highways, Amenity, Principle of
Development.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve with conditions

SITE MAP




Page 85

1. APPLICATION SITE

1.1The Site
The application site consists of a 3 storey brick built building with a newer single
storey rear extension.

The building is currently used a function room / restaurant / bar at ground floor level
with Bed and Breakfast accommodation on the upper floors.

The site has no dedicated car parking and contains a small beer garden area on
the Eastern elevation.

The site is located to the West of Runcorn Old Town Centre. A public car park is
located to the West of the application site.

The surrounding buildings are largely commercial in character and are mixed in
terms of design and age.

1.2Planning History

13/00408/COU

Proposed change of use of part of premises (on first and second floors) to bed and
breakfast accommodation, refurbishment of members bar to public sports bar and
formation of new kitchen on ground floor — Granted 2013

2. THE APPLICATION

2.1The Proposal

Permission is sought to convert the building into a 17 bedroom House of Multiple
occupation (HMO)

It should be noted that following discussions with officers regarding the internal
layout the number of bedrooms has been reduced from 20 to 17.

In addition to the 17 bedrooms the building will contain 2 kitchens a TV room an
internal bike store and a communal dining / seating / kitchen room.

All bedrooms have a private en suite and an external windows. The rooms vary in
size between 15 and 23 m/2.

The external changes proposed are minor and involve the alteration to some
windows and doors and the insertion of high level roof lights.

Amenity space is proposed in the former beer garden .An external bin store is also
proposed in this area.



Page 86

2.2Documentation

The application contains

Existing and proposed plans and elevations
Design and access statement
Planning statement including documentation regarding viability

POLICY CONTEXT

Members are reminded that planning law requires for development proposals
to be determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

THE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

3.1 Halton Delivery and Allocations Local Plan (2022)

The following policies contained within the Halton Delivery and Allocations
Local Plan are of relevance:

CS(R)18 High Quality Design;

C1 Transport Network and Accessibility;
C2 Parking Standards;

GR1 Design of Development;

GR2 Amenity

CS(N) 26 Unallocated Land in Urban Areas
HC5 Community Facilities and Services

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)

Design of Residential Development SPD

3.2 Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste Local Plan (2013)

The following policies, contained within the Joint Merseyside and Halton Waste
Local Plan are of relevance:

¢ WMS8 Waste Prevention and Resource Management;

e WM9 Sustainable Waste Management Design and Layout for New
Development.

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Below are material considerations relevant to the determination of this planning
application.



Page 87

3.3National Planning Policy Framework

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published in July 2021
to set out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these should
be applied.

3.4 Equality Duty

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 created the public sector equality duty.
Section 149 states:-

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to
the need to:

a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;

b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

Officers have taken this into account and given due regard to this statutory duty,
and the matters specified in Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 in the
determination of this application.

There are no known equality implications arising directly from this development
that justify the refusal of planning permission.

3.50ther Considerations

The application has been considered having regard to Article 1 of the First
Protocol of the Human Rights Act 1998, which sets out a persons rights to the
peaceful enjoyment of property and Article 8 of the Convention of the same Act
which sets out his/her rights in respect for private and family life and for the
home. Officers consider that the proposed development would not be contrary
to the provisions of the above Articles in respect of the human rights of
surrounding residents/occupiers.

4. CONSULTATIONS SUMMARY

4 1Highways and Transportation Development Control

Whilst no on-site car parking is offered, the same position as the former use, it
is directly adjacent a HBC public car park, one of several about the Runcorn
Town Centre. There is also limited on-street parking about the area. This “Top
Locks” parking area was surveyed as part of the Runcorn Old Town Parking
Study, 2014.



Page 88

The results demonstrated that this parking area operates at a maximum of 65%
of capacity — of the total 78 spaces - with an average of 51% use. The general
under-utilisation of this parking area offers capacity for vehicles associated with
the development site.

Significant parking pressures in the vicinity of the site, or vehicular congestion,
which could cause potential danger and/or inconvenience, to residents and
town centre users, should therefore not ensue as a result of the development.

As mitigation for the use of this Council parking asset by residents a S106 sum
for enhancements to the parking area will be requested, see below.

Highways expressed concerns regarding bin and cycle storage although these
issues have now been addressed with the submission of amended plans

4 2 Regeneration (Town Centre)

Regeneration (Town centres) would like to object to the application on the
following grounds:-

We believe that an open to market 20 HMO property cannot be managed
properly and leads to anti-social behaviour.

The landlord cannot operate a HMO without a licence and therefore
management arrangements need to evidence the landlord is fit and proper,
however the plans submitted gives the impression the landlord is not fit and
proper, as the proposed layout points to management issues, anti-social
behaviour, which would eventually come back to HBC to deal with.

e 15sgm per person studio is simply too small for people's health and wellbeing,
and possibly does not meet housing standards. With such a large number in
one building sharing facilities, it 'invites' issues between tenants. It looks more
like the proposal for a 'publicly funded private run short stay centre' and surely
such use would require a management plan.

e the 15sgm is intended for single persons only, and the units would not be
suitable for family units, restricting the use of the HMO severely.

e There is no management facility space in the plan to deal with any tenant
issues, and with so many mostly likely single, male tenants, this raises alarm
bells in relation to security / welfare of any female person that would reside
there. If there is an all-male residency, it will 'invite' more frequent, different
issues and this should be addressed in the design and layout.

e This is overdevelopment, if these were independent flats they would require at
least 37sgm units.

e With 20 units shouldn’t there be a management office on site taking
responsibility for tenant’s security and wellbeing on behalf of the landlord.

e There does not seem to be any proposed parking facility, no outdoor space,
no bin storage, no bike storage — Has a fire safety consultant been
commissioned to advise on the design; the layout looks dangerous, with only



Page 89

one exit door (with a shared kitchen adjacent where fires in theory are known
to start).

It should be noted that the above responses relate to the original submission
for 20 bedrooms. The amended plans have been forwarded to both with a
request for updated comments and Members will be updated with respect to
any response received.

4.3 Elected Members

Clir Norman Plumpton Walsh has stated

From an assessment of this planning application today, | find it to be full of
shortcomings, together with being short-sighted.

From a personal point of view, | sometimes use this building as a customer,
as only residing around the corner.

Despite 3.3 of planning statement, this building is not “currently vacant”. I'm
actually attending a charity event on 3 December there.

The design and access statement is 1/3 of a page long, and woefully lacking
in detail for the proposed volume of bedists to be situated in the building. And
here as an occasional building user, (as with upstairs in former years), |
cannot envisage how so many bedsits will cram inside the space available,
more so also on first and second floors.

The ground floor has already been compared to today by a constituent as
reminiscent of “chicken coups”.

And as for the building fitting with other local residential accommodation, there
is evidence that ASB is taking place in the flats (triangular floor plans to fit
more in) directly opposite this proposed site.

From previous plans (from memory), although applied for as flats look
strangely like a HMO. The flats seem to be neglected, and smashed window
on the canal side, as well as often overflowing bins.

Most important of all, within the plans and statement, there is no mention at all
of fire safety, as required by the Housing Act 2004 to be submitted with
application.

In my rudimentary judgement, this is further proof of hastily prepared
documents with no real consideration for the people who would live there.



Page 90

| cannot condone this development anyway as a HMO (reasons below), but
especially not owing to the application thrown together with no consideration
for residents safety.

There is also an assumption throughout the planning statements that there is
access to nearby public car parks, so no real need for parking provision within
the application. This, makes an assertion that residents may not have access
to their own vehicular transport, and makes inference to public transport
available locally.

With my own academic background, (previously studying town centres and
regeneration) at postgraduate level, you do not regenerate by potentially
saturating an area with the maximum amount of accommodation possible.
Although perversely, Runcorn needs more residential accommodation to in
turn, boost population figures to merit any potential future developments.

You do it by providing small family homes within and around town centres
mainly via 1 or preferably 2 bed houses or flats, with the captive spend that
could potentially generate.

As much as | understand that people need housing, the answer is not Demi-
Victorian era mass housing with demographic problems that could create, or
perpetuate.

And it is not the answer within a town centre we are working hard to
regenerate.

| would urge you to reconsider, or revert to the applicant.

Clir Victoria Begg has stated

| wish to raise my concerns below for Planning Application 22/00602/COU.

A proposed change of use to the building will have an unacceptable
detrimental impact on the character of the area.

My concerns relate to:
Inadequate garden space.

Residents should have outdoor amenity space for sitting out and drying
clothes. People cannot be locked away in small confined areas they need to
breathe fresh air.

People who may be neurodivergent do not want to sit in a park with other
people, they want peace and solitude within a safe space. | feel if a large
garden space is not provided then this is impacting on people’s human rights.

Unduly prominent bin storage areas.



Page 91

Will these be located in the small outdoor amenity space or scattered around
the adjacent car park which would result in a health and safety issue for
Halton Borough Council who own the carpark.

Increased comings and goings on a quiet road will have a detrimental impact
on the character of the area.

Significant alteration of the external appearance of the building.

If fire escapes are to be installed this will harm the existing character of the
building. Does the building have space to install fire escapes or will they be
built on adjacent land which is not owned by the developer.

The number of coming and goings (people and vehicles) from the proposed
development and general activity around it will greatly increase, causing noise
and disturbance for neighbours. Wat Phra Singh, 88 High Street will be
impacted by the noise, as a place of worship | find this totally unacceptable.

Paragraphs 91 and 127 of the National Planning Policy Framework
recommend that local planning authorities ensure their policies and decisions
aim to create safe and accessible environments where crime and disorder,
and the fear of crime, do not undermine quality of life or community cohesion.

Planning Application 22/00602/COU will not provide a safe environment for
certain members of our community, such as lone females, disabled people
and LGBTQ+ people. The building is not designed to accommodate a diverse
group of people who may have additional needs due to its unsafe rabbit
warren layout. On this note will video cameras be installed to ease residents’
concerns.

The building does have good access to public transport, within easy walking
and cycling distances of local services and places of education and
community facilities. This is the one and only positive in the planning
application.

My concerns are in regards to parking.

Will an allocation of 0.5 parking spaces per bedroom be a request by
Development Control. If NO then please advise why.

Will provision of secure cycle parking be taken into account, if so at what
location and for how many cycles.

| am opposed to this planning application on the grounds that Runcorn Old
Town will become a Rachmanism if this or future developments are approved.
Careful judgement is required on this planning application.



Page 92

4.4 Environmental Health

No comments received

5 REPRESENTATIONS

5.1 The application was publicised by 41 neighbour notification letters sent on
24/11/2022 and again on 16/05/2023 following the submission of amended plans
which reduced the number of bedrooms from 20 to 17. The consultation period
expired on 30/5/2023.

5 objections have been received from 4 authors. The Grounds of objection can be
summarised as follows.

e “No toillegal immigrants — need to look after what we have”
¢ Residents will place additional strain on NHS

e Increase demand for scarce local parking

e Loss of community facility

e Harmful to prospects of redeveloping canal area

e Layout will provide residents with low levels of amenity

e Will be used by migrants

e Contrary to Local Plan

e Potential to increase anti-social behaviour — Town Centre will be over run
e Loss of employment

e Inaccuracies in application form

e Problems with access

6 ASSESSMENT

6.1 Principle of development / DALP Allocation / Impact upon nearby Runcorn
Old Town Centre

The provision of residential accommodation in a sustainable location is considered
acceptable in principle provided that other criteria such as the loss of the
community use which is discussed below are met.



Page 93

The provision of residential accommodation has the potential to bring about a
number of benefits to the nearby Runcorn Old Town Centre in terms of increasing
footfall and animating the Town Centre.

The provision of housing in a sustainable location is also considered beneficial as
is the reuse of a building that might otherwise become vacant.

6.2 Amenity of future occupants and neighbours

The applicant has following discussions with officers reduced the proposed number
of bedrooms from 20 to 17. The reduction in bedroom numbers has resulted in
increased amenity space being provided within the building in the form of improved
kitchen provision and a shared TV room. This improvement will result in increased
levels of amenity for future occupiers.

The bedrooms themselves all feature integral en-suite bathrooms and external
windows and are a minimum of 15 m/2 in area. The size conforms to The National
Space Standards for HMO'’s.

Following the submission of amended plans external private amenity space is now
provided at the side and rear of the property giving residents access to outside
space.

In terms of the impact upon the amenity of neighbouring occupiers the replacement
of the Pub with residential accommodation is likely to result in reduced disturbance
to neighbours.

Proposed windows are on the same plane as existing windows and will not lead to
an increase in over and inter looking.

It is not considered that refusal of planning permission could be justified with

respect to amenity levels of future occupiers and/ or impact upon the amenity of
neighbouring and future occupiers.

6.3Highways, Transport and Accessibility

The Council’s Highways Officer states “that significant parking pressures in the
vicinity of the site, or vehicular congestion, which could cause potential danger
and/or inconvenience, to residents and town centre users, should therefore not
ensue as a result of the development.”

The Highways Officer also states that “it is considered a Highway Objection on the
ground of a lack of onsite car parking spaces would similarly not be upheld by the
Planning Inspectorate.”



Page 94

Given the sustainable location and available parking in the local area it is not
considered that refusal of planning permission could be justified on the grounds of
parking provision.

Whilst the Council’'s Highways Officer has suggested that mitigation for use of the
public car park could be secured by s106, it is not considered that any policy harm
can be demonstrated or to be:

e necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
o directly related to the development; and
« fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development

as required by statutory tests within the Regulations and as policy tests in the
National Planning Policy Framework.

The Highways Officer stated in relation to the application as originally submitted
that “it is considered that the site is overdeveloped and a reduction in the number
of bedsit units will allow for the improved and inclusive access to all areas of the
site as necessary and the inclusion of sufficient accessible cycle and bin storage
as abovementioned”

Following discussions with the developer the number of bedrooms has been
reduced from 20 to 17, access has been improved to an enlarged amenity space
with an external bin store and secure cycle parking is how proposed within the
building in response to issues raised by the Council’s Highways Officer.

Whilst updated comments are awaited and members will be updated accordingly

it is not considered that refusal of planning permission could be sustained on
Highways grounds.

6.4 Design / Impact upon Street Scene

The proposed external changes are minimal and will have no negative impact upon
the character of the building or the wider street scene.

Investment in the property and the removal of the existing signage has the potential
to bring about visual gains.

6.5 Flood Risk and Drainage

The application site is located within Flood Zone 1 (lowest risk) and as such raises
no concerns regarding flooding.

6.6 Infrastructure requirements

Reference has been made to residents of the proposed accommodation placing
additional strain on local infrastructure. While the number of new residents is
unlikely to significantly increase demand. It should be noted that no requests or



Page 95

evidence has been submitted that would justify a refusal or weigh against the
development.

The development is not of a scale requiring financial contributions to be made
toward infrastructure provision.

6.7 Anti-Social Behavior / Crime

Concerns have been raised regarding the potential of the proposed use to give rise
to Anti-Social Behavior/ increase in crime.

Anti Social Behavior is defined as

“The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act, 2014 defines ASB as
(a)conduct that has caused, or is likely to cause, harassment, alarm or distress to
any person, (b)conduct capable of causing nuisance or annoyance to a person in
relation to that person's occupation of residential premises, or (c)conduct capable
of causing housing-related nuisance or annoyance to any person. “

However, due to the subjective nature of human behaviours it can be difficult to
define ASB in practical terms. What is acceptable for one person is not always
acceptable for another. Therefore, while it is possible users of the unit may behave
in ways that neighbours find unacceptable this can be said of any proposed use in
any location.

The Planning system cannot make assumptions regarding the behaviour of future
occupants and cannot base decisions upon the ethnicity, nationality, marital status,
economic status or gender of potential occupants. Nor can assumptions be made
about the likelihood of occupants to commit crimes. No evidence has been
provided to indicate that this development would result in significant harm in this
regard.

6.12 Loss of Community Facility

It is not considered that the loss of the pub / function room / restaurant will cause
significant harm to the provision of Community Facilities locally. The locale is well
served in terms of alternative provision of such facilities with a number of Public
Houses being located nearby.

The applicant has stated that the unit has become economically unviable and has
been provided limited evidence in this regard and, by way of example that no tickets
were sold for 3 Christmas Events organised in December 2022.

Given the viability information submitted and the existence of alternative facilities
nearby it is not considered that the loss of the Community Facility would constitute
sustainable grounds to withhold Planning Permission.



Page 96

6.13 Licensing of HMO / Fire Safety

The process of licensing the HMO should Planning Permission be granted is a
separate process to the Planning Application and is not material to this application.

Issues relating to security and Fire Safety are not considered to be material

planning considerations and will be dealt with by separate means outside of
planning legislation.

6 CONCLUSIONS

The proposed development will provide residential accommodation in a
sustainable location. It also has the potential for securing use of what may
otherwise become a vacant building. The applicant has amended the scheme
resulting in a reduction in units, improved accommodation prevision for future
residents and addressing issues relating to amenity space provision, cycle and bin
storage and accessibility arrangements. It is considered acceptable and is
compliant with the Halton DALP.

7 RECOMMENDATION

Approve subject to condition.

8 CONDITIONS

It is recommended that the following conditions are appended to any Planning
Permission

Reason for decision

Standard Time Conditions

Specifying Approved Plans

External materials to match existing

Details of refuse store to be agreed
Implementation and retention of cycle storage area

OO WN =

9 BACKGROUND PAPERS

The submitted planning applications are background papers to the report.
Other background papers specifically mentioned and listed within the report are
open to inspection at the Council’s premises at Municipal Building, Kingsway,
Widnes, WA8 7QF in accordance with Section 100D of the Local Government
Act 1972.



Page 97

10 SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

As required by:

e The National Planning Policy Framework (2021);

e The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(England) Order 2015; and

e The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Amendment)
(England) Regulations 2015.

This statement confirms that the local planning authority has worked proactively
with the applicant to secure developments that improve the economic, social
and environmental conditions of Halton.



___]f,\____ Development Control Committee
HALTON 3rd July 2023

BOROUGH COUNCIL

/i

| §e

‘B ,\"‘;b J * .
2 6 abed |
T

e wenepueﬁg



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

1@
o)

© Crown copyright and database rights [2023] Ordnance Survey 100018552

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan |A: Location Plan




)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

STREET SCENE A-A @ 1:200

STREET SCENE B-B @ 1:200

00T abed

STREET SCENE C-C CONTINUED @ 1:200

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan IB :Street Scene Plan



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan 1C : Site Layout Plan (1)




Development Control Committee

il
iy i

:

1 1 i

ni __.. "" i !
hgtid il BEEEEE!
i il 1 O O O O

NNVENE TR TN

A

pr
s
<
I?

_b

Plan ID :Site Layout Plan (2)

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

AN / \
/ ./ % k \
/" 23 / \
£ .
/ '\
N 7 N
SN & N\
3 ' \
-

— ;L; D
L—[HD B H _____ |
o
FRONT ELEVATION. L.H. SIDE ELEVATION. REAR ELEVATION. g
D
H
o
A w
7 > — ‘ / \
| bd L _Jj’ = 1’317 ANDING “— -
ﬂ [IKITCHEN DG IE{H” J—?“ﬁ' i I I
i | — f‘j L L [~ —-1 /f o4 - | Enluj -J'L-,
>:-. bt / LL\I L-\‘-.. s ‘ BED2 —"] _ES ‘*--\\I BED Y “_ | L i= ‘) L L= ‘,
—_— ] — Lo | L
L %l ‘ R et S
GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRSTFLOOR PLAN. R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.

Application Number: 22/00318/FUL Plan |E : Braxton House Type




_h_
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

J/\L
i i

B HEmE A

FRONT ELEVATION.

=

KITCHEN/ 25}
DINING
k1

m

e
-

@Ow %
’—-M
\ "

o

GROUND FLOOR PLAN.

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL

—

L BATH[ I]]j
IYe:
= T
- ' BED3 ||

\|

o —

| o

L.H. SIDE ELEVATION.
o
|
BED? :|
sf.:J}.,E I
LANDING || 3| '

FIRST FLOOR PLAN.

|

I

‘
\
\
\
\
\
\
I
i
|
|
|
|
|
I
|
1

REAR ELEVATION.

SECOND FLOOR PLAN.

¥ NDICATES END TERRACE WINDOW CFTON

Development Control Committee

0T obed

Plan |F : Calderton House Type




r -

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

ey — — — — — b — — — — — 4

FRONT ELEVATION. L.H. SIDE ELEVATION.

T
QD
TV g
—— | e =
| FIGaE &
BRFEA‘:(I;IJST I% KITCHEN = BEDI = ,"Hl . BEDd
L\ = T LANDNG
ST F—i“i T H“ .
X el badtiony. Esz DRESS.
= iz @1/
LOUNGE . ] { —
—~ Al DINING BED2 f b ]
G| ¥ Wl H
ST L‘ l—l—r— I | : I__:_‘ | L [ — |
R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.
GROUND FLOOR PLAN. FIRST FLOOR PLAN.

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan |G : Crosswood House Type



r -

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

................

rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr

REAR ELEVATION.

4 - 1 B % ’
L YA / BATH []
§ FAMLLY g ﬂ% E'_. u‘l LANDING ._.|:_| 4
— HALL “‘*" —Eﬁi.l:.GE 3 Iﬂﬁa@ I *\%J‘E}RESS ! 1_/‘2@5
LOUNGE j H; --------- 1| f | |
I J-J | R.I'_I._SIPE_EI_EVATION.
GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRSTFLOORPLAN.

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan IH : Denford House Type



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

C KTCHEN DINING
- ‘:—v === [ct=
wy” st EONC S
—_ w4 T
= m . GARAGE

e e En

pl L i
| FIRST FLOOR PLAN R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.
GROUND FLOOR PLAN L

REGIONAL TECHNCAL TEAM OVER SITE SFECFIC WRATINS

Application Number: 55,993 8/FUL

Plan |1 : Denwood House Type




r -

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

\

I
l
t
l
|
|
|

C_|
L]
[ (o

T
o) |UT

L.H. SIDE ELEVATION. REAR ELEVATION.

=+

- =] S (57 7

1

, |

03 | 82 |}
{ U A8

s, ki | I
«—‘_

" [BO
Llﬁtmo“\ma‘ ﬁl

o fby -

e L |

= =
GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRSTFLOORPLAN.

80T abed

BED 1

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan 1] : Ingleton House Type



r -

HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

FRONT ELEVATION.

N
)
DINIG " '
|
g . _
PO ST e ? ES

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL

L.H. SIDE ELEVATION.

i i - " -
f‘
BED4 I ;
BATH -
J:J " ]

L.ﬁh:lING b
—\_ [E’ J@ i

w2 | S

1

1

| "—'—f‘TL: |

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

REAR ELEVATION.

R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.

i IRDICATES OFTIONAL NTERNAL DO, DONFIRM WITH
* FEGIONAL TECHNICAL TEAM OVER SITE SPECIFC VARIATIONS

Development Control Committee

60T abed

Plan IK : Kirkwood House Type




r -

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

L 1) mi

’F' ﬂ\ m

[

T
FRONT ELEVATION. L.H. SIDE ELEVATION. REAR ELEVATION. &
& D
[N
== - =
LIVING / DINING Uiz | BED1 .1, .'
@
' * %MA‘ZTHG] L %
'BED2--
y .‘;: A L L.
GROUND FLOOR PLAN. FIRSTFLOOR PLAN. R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan IL : Highmont House Type



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

FETE T

Iy it it W B’
i 1) L .
L.H. SIDE ELEVATION. REAR ELEVATION. T
&
D
1 -
BED2 /-
T L
g L] o 5 e L*l*
ST. w‘=4
—_— BED1 /-
: il
GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRSTFLOORPLAN. R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.

- OPTIONA WINDOW POSITIONS 7.0R ALTERMATAE HANDAG:

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan IM :Ingleton (2) House Type



r -

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

L.H. SIDE ELEVATION. REAR ELEVATION. T
. Q&
— =t = , =
{:’ BED3 : DS
LVING |
(ST, |
S_T1Ii DINING ' .tr—v—jwn | J’
:;3::' = JI:__.__L’~ ) G
7] muﬁé L ] W_H:
We KITCHEN = BED1 :
Dl B SN — |
GROUND FLOOR PLAN. FIRSTFLOOR PLAN. R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.

X OFTIONAL WINDOW POSITIONS FOR ALTERRATIVE HANDING.

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan IN : Washington House Type



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

I I

" "o

N
REAR ELEVATION. %
8 ||:
. rlzjn—e’-f:ij iJ | H w
s w2 |l e
DNNG | : ?‘ : | :
ST WE. '_ﬁ‘_‘if ET’;{JING °F i_ |l
s 5" ! - BATH 4| [T » !
' | = « = i
= i ﬂ=11 = i
| - j | = i
FL LounGe i =5 03 || |E i
jw{‘—'1 rgi —uJ’L '“E“ | “1_
GROUND FLOOR PLAN. FIRST FLOOR PLAN. SECONDFLOOR PLAN.

%~ INDICATES EAD TERRACE WINIOW DPTKN

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan 10 : Calderton (2) House Type




r -

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

il
ik

FRONT ELEVATION. L.H. SIDE ELEVATION. REAR ELEVATION.

yTT obed

TDNNG | KITCHEN

g ST
=
Ne £ ‘LO;JNGE |
GROUND FLOOR PLAN. FIRSTFLOOR PLAN. R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan |P :Whitton House Type



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

FRONT ELEVATION. L.H. SIDE ELEVATION. REAR ELEVATION. §
D
H
|_\
” (@)]
=
: STd avome
i JBATH _BED3
ST, -
’_f_eeoz I T Rl
GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRSTFLOOR PLAN. R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan 1Q : Braxton (2) House Type



r -

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

L]

i

El,!liﬂl

n

FRONT ELEVATION. L.H. SIDE ELEVATION. REAR ELEVATION.
o
- jab)
| @
I = y | = [ =B]] . =
WC.  LAUNDRY T =
KITCHEN ! =7 (@))

DINNG [—

F = = =
E g,

oRAGE | £
:;;‘LOUNGE BED2 ST, |
’H_:\l:l. = BED 1
R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.
GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN

o INDICATES CPTIONAL NTERNAL DOOR, DONFRM WITH
REGIONAL TECHNICAL TEAN CNER SITE SPECFICVARATIONS

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan IR :Tollwood House Type



r -

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

ol

T ' m

FRONT ELEVATION. L.H. SIDE ELEVATION. REAR ELEVATION. T
* )
D
Wi =
KITCHEN [1 DINING ] ~
e LAUNDRY
ol N ‘*‘
& ST. - 8
_ GARAGE
' LOUNGE s
e HALL| s .
: Pt
FIRST FLOOR PLAN. R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.
GROUND FLOOR PLAN. e s et s o

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan 1S : Skywood House Type



r -

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

i l [

FRONT ELEVATION. L.H. SIDE ELEVATION. REAR ELEVATION. i)
2 s
— —r— ®
ooien oW 1] puay L BATH il B
[ T3 o
‘WL:T?WC -* i I LANDING E E‘S;
X1 B e i e : DRESS.
o f Ry /| o e
GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.

_X_ INDICATES OPTIONAL INTERNAL DOCR, CONFIRN WITH
PEGONAL TEC-NICAL TEAM OVER SITE SPECFIC YARATIONS.

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan IT : Kirkwood (2) House Type



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

n T
(][]

FRONT ELEVATION. L.H. SIDE ELEVATION. REAR ELEVATION.

KITCHEN

6TT 9bed

BED4 BED2 |

FAMILY/DINING

LANDING

BATH

BED3

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRSTFLOOR PLAN. R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan 1U : Norwood House Type



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

T T B

EID |

L.H. SIDE ELEVATION. REAR ELEVATION.

02T 9bed

KITCHEN | DINNG

FIRST FLOOR PLAN R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.
GROUND FLOOR PLAN 6 DDICATES CPTONAL NTERNAL DOOR, CONFRIWITH

FECIONAL TECRNCAL TEAM OVER SITE SPECFICVARANIONS.

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan 1V : Denwood(2) House Type



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

l T T

T T " n
FRONT ELEVATION. L.H. SIDE ELEVATION. REAR ELEVATION. T
= &
: D
=
1 H . N
Bmlﬁzﬂ | KITCHEN E =

5

LOUNGE

R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.
GROUND FLOOR PLAN. FIRST FLOOR PLAN.

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan IW : Crosswood(2) House Type



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

REAR ELEVATION.

FRONT ELEVATION.
| D!NING —  KITCHEN

‘ ) I 2
| B B i L
I - B
FAMLY 7
; T %Esr o

LOUNGE e e L

LAUNDRY

R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.

_x_ SOICATES OPTIONAL INTERWAL DOOR, CONFIRM WITH
FEQONAL TECSNCAL TEAU CVER SITE SPECFIC VARRTIONS.

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRSTFLOOR PLAN.
Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan 1X : Denford(2) House Type




)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

FRONT ELEVATION. L.H. SIDE ELEVATION. REAR ELEVATION. ;\JU
LTV Q
— ! o [ ’
[T = H
R BED4 | BEDZ %
FANLYDINNG =% _\b‘\"\
N /-l 1 A . ,/’/( ﬂ“‘\i‘ §
bt U LRy P S
WL/ ] ]
LOONGE || =~ = = -
o p 2 B
8 t 1
; R

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN. R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan 1Y : Norwood(2) House Type



r -

HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Development Control Committee

B3l KmeHeN DINNG

S 2 '/'
L Ju L 53
\ {0 [F=
3 Xg L-7
ST. " w .
H owe ‘

ns

GROUND FLOOR PLAN.

e

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL

o —

sr / LANDING F f—é@
el H
Hﬂ“’ J‘El s

BED1 BED3

FIRST FLOOR PLAN.

O[T

REAR ELEVATION.

e N
ra S
“ =] \
S
/
i m
L
=
e

e T SR, —— ey o

R.H. SIDE ELEVATION.

INOCATES OPTIONAL INTERNAL DOOR CONFRN MITH

R RECONAL TEDINCAL TEAM OVER SITE SPECHIC \ARATINS

Plan 1Z : Skywood(2) House Type




r -

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

T
Im

\
|
\
|
[
|
\
4 == Ees N

FRONT ELEVATION. L.H. SIDE ELEVATION. REAR ELEVATION. =)
2 g
— .1, \‘v'/ lj_ ] =
—J?-Jﬁ — = = S %
' BED3| |gepy [
LVING | L |
| | =
4[[_ - i [%LANDF mm %}k*
2‘LHALM_1 e IST‘T> T"VJ‘ |
e ,l PTC“_E”% [i_EE] ot
CA8E et ; :I‘#:J._
GROUND FLOORPLAN. FIRSTFLOORPLAN.

Application Number: 22/003 1 8/FUL Plan | AA :Washington(2) House Type



r -

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Copynght Bluesky

Application Number: 22/003I8/FUL Plan IBB : Aerial Photograph




)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

b
BARRCWS GAECH
. 5
@ =]

) =], Y ?
® Crown copyright and database rights [2023] Ordnance Survey 100018552 .

Application Number: 22/00377/FUL | Plan 2A : Location Plan




)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION

8¢T abed

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN

Application Number: 22/00377/FUL Plan 2B : The Aughton House Type




)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

BEOROOM
2

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION
FIRST FLOOR PLAN

62T obed

e ——

WITCHEN /
DINING
we X
[
!
LouNGE . |
|
|
| |
REAR ELEVATION
‘.

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Application Number: 22/00377/FUL Plan 2C :The Barton House Type




)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

FRONT ELEVATION SIPE ELEVATION
FIRST FLOOR FPLAN

su02

0¢T abed

R S
KITCHEN ¢ ‘
DINING |
T
—A
we I pof ==
st i
| 1 ]
\ |
| f
i
- REAR ELEVATION
& <)

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Application Number: 22/00377/FUL Plan 2D :The Barton (2) House Type



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

TET obed

L pem =
9 |
% -
- STORE
LOUNGE i
we
REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Application Number: 22/00377/FUL Plan 2E : The Croston House Type



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

FARST FLOOR PLAN

©740

Z<T obed

—

KITCHEN / DINING

= .

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

- .

GROUNDP FLOOR FPLAN

Application Number: 22/00377/FUL Plan 2F :The Barley House Type




)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

e
b unury
r KITCHEN / YNNG

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

ceT abed

o =

GROUND FLOOR PLAN REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

Application Number: 22/00377/FUL Plan 2G :The Cleveley House Type



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

GROUNPD FLOOR PLAN

Application Number: 22/00377/FUL Plan 2H :The Sawley House Type




)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

LOUNGE

HAL
we
d - 1 REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

GROUNPD FLOOR PLAN

Application Number: 22/00377/FUL Plan 2| : The Whalley House Type




)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

LANDING

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

FAMILY

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Application Number: 22/00377/FUL Plan 2) :The Whalley(2) House Type



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

FIRST FLOOR PLAN
FRONT ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION

-
|
|

/€T abed

-

SIDE ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

GROUNP FLOOR FPLAN

Application Number: 22/00377/FUL Plan 2K :The Mawdesley House Type



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

=
=
= 3
=53
mf
3 D -y

‘EEEHZDDI

|

—r

Application Number: 22/00377/FUL Plan 2L : Site Layout Plan



r -

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

{ 1 Al Fir &, g
¥ ! A
s T ey 4 A
e 0 F oo
ot 90 Piot 98 1

OSSN |

Application Number: 22/00377/FUL Plan 2M : Streetscene Plan



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Application Number: 22/00377/FUL Plan 2N : Aerial Photograph




)
N\ _
HALT\ON Development Control Committee

Application Number: 22/00602/COU : Location Plan



)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

78 High Streat, Runcom

g
I Vg | g -I‘NQCImwrmn

Existing Plans
ey Cround Fioer i

Application Number: 22/00602/COU Plan 3B : Existing Plan




)
N\ _
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

slalslzl
I'H|3||I _
Fﬁ@ﬁ' | H ©H o 5 B

id 0 5 ;
= Ho [ i

et T obed

5 B 5 O Of

) 4 M
Y e
/_ \ _— — Ve | =
T8 High Sireet, Runcom
L N & Tilie
i ——— | e — == HIIO Canversion
Froposas deued oo fan Feopromes Fra Fiosr Fan Proprogas Spcond Fuor Man Plo‘polsad Plans

Application Number: 22/00602/COU Plan 3C : Proposed Plan




r -

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

| Copyright Bluesky &

Application Number: 22/00602/COU : Aerial Photograph




Page 145 Agenda ltem 4

REPORT TO: Development Management Committee

DATE: 3 July 2023

REPORTING OFFICER: Executive Director — Environment &
Regeneration

SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Information

WARD(S): Boroughwide

The following Appeals have been received / are in progress:

22/00019/PLD Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for a proposed
use of development for the installation of a solar farm (ground
mounted solar photovoltaic panels) at Liverpool John Lennon
Airport, Land Bounded By Dungeon Lane, Hale Road And Baileys
Lane To The East Of Liverpool John Lennon Airport Speke
Liverpool L24 1YD.

22/00285/ADV

&

22/00284/FUL The retrospective application for planning consent for the
installation of a car park management system on existing car park
comprising 4 no. pole mounted automatic number plate
recognition (ANPR) cameras and 6 no. park and display
machines at Car Park at Green Oaks Shopping Centre, Widnes,
WAS 6UA.

21/00016/0UT Outline application, with all matters other than access reserved
for the erection of two semi-detached dwellings and four detached
dwellings on the existing church field and the retention of the
existing scout hut at Hough Green Scout and Guide Group Hall
And Church Field Hall Avenue Widnes.

The following Appeals have been determined:
22/00103/FUL Proposed construction of front dormer and rear dormer to newly

formed first floor at 265 Hale Road, Hale, Liverpool L24 5RF —
Dismissed



	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3a 22/00318/FUL - Proposed development comprising 328 dwellings including a mix of 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 bedroom units, affordable housing provision, creation of two new access points from Lunt's Heath Road and associated landscaping, open space, play space and parking provision on land North of Lunt's Heath Road, Widnes
	3b 22/00377/FUL - Proposed demolition of existing buildings and the erection of residential development (Use Class C3) with associated landscaping, access/egress, car parking, drainage, and other necessary supporting infrastructure on land at South Lane, Widnes
	3c 22/00602/COU - Proposed change of use from Bar/Bed and Breakfast to a 17 bedroom house in multiple occupation, including external alterations at Bridge View Sports Bar, 78 High Street, Runcorn, WA7 1JH
	3d Plans
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22
	Slide 23
	Slide 24
	Slide 25
	Slide 26
	Slide 27
	Slide 28
	Slide 29
	Slide 30
	Slide 31
	Slide 32
	Slide 33
	Slide 34
	Slide 35
	Slide 36
	Slide 37
	Slide 38
	Slide 39
	Slide 40
	Slide 41
	Slide 42
	Slide 43
	Slide 44
	Slide 45
	Slide 46
	Slide 47

	4 MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

